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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Bill Perkins, Chairman of the

          4  Governmental Operations Committee.  We are here

          5  today to have a hearing on City Council Resolution

          6  909, and my opening statement will come from the New

          7  York Bill of Rights Defense Campaign, the local

          8  Chapter of the National Movement in conjunction with

          9  the -- working in conjunction with the New York

         10  Civil Liberties Union.  And it basically is a

         11  Resolution that calls upon government officials to

         12  affirm and uphold civil rights and civil liberties.

         13                 In the anxious days following

         14  September 11, 2001, the government acted with

         15  extraordinary speed to create sweeping new

         16  government powers in an effort to combat terrorism.

         17  It has become increasingly clear, however, that

         18  these new powers have led to serious violations of

         19  rights and liberties guaranteed by the United States

         20  Constitution.

         21                 Many New Yorkers have been victims of

         22  overzealous and misguided anti-terrorism

         23  initiatives.  City Council Resolution 909 states

         24  that it is not necessary to violate individual

         25  freedoms in order to protect the public safety.  We
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          2  can be safe and free.  Reso. 909 acknowledges that

          3  the important role government plays in protecting

          4  the public from acts of terrorism.  The Resolution

          5  also recognizes, however, that anti terrorism

          6  initiatives must be undertaken in a rational and

          7  deliberative manner.

          8                 Over 140 cities, towns, villages and

          9  three States have passed similar resolutions and

         10  Reso. 909 is part of this growing national movement.

         11  It calls upon Federal, State and local authorities

         12  to respect civil rights and civil liberties when

         13  undertaking anti- terrorism initiatives, and to

         14  account to the people of New York City for the

         15  exercise of these new expanded police powers.

         16                 Reso. 909 calls upon public officials

         17  to safeguard our constitutional rights to access an

         18  attorney, to be charged with a crime if arrested,

         19  and to have a public trial.  Since 9/11, hundreds of

         20  men of Arab, Muslim and South Asian descent have

         21  been detained and held without charges and without

         22  access to counsel.  Officials in the Justice and

         23  Defense Departments assert they have the power to

         24  detain American citizens indefinitely without filing

         25  charges or allowing them access to an attorney.
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          2                 Indeed, U.S. Citizens have been

          3  detained indefinitely without charges, and hundreds

          4  of immigrants have been subjected to secret

          5  immigration proceedings with no proof that a public

          6  trial would endanger national security.  Reso. 909

          7  calls upon New York City Government to comply with

          8  the Bill of Rights and not subject New Yorkers to

          9  secret detentions without charges and detention

         10  without access to counsel.

         11                 Reso. 909 calls upon public officials

         12  to protect New Yorkers from intrusive and

         13  unconstitutional surveillance. The USA PATRIOT Act

         14  jeopardizes New York's rights of privacy and due

         15  process.  This sweeping new legislation gives the

         16  FBI authority to obtain an order from a secret court

         17  for an individual's library records, e- mail,

         18  medical history and other records, without any

         19  evidence the individual is involved in any unlawful

         20  activity.  Libraries across the country have

         21  responded by posting warning signs and shredding

         22  their records.

         23                 Reso. 909 calls upon New York City

         24  Government to respect the right of New Yorkers to

         25  speak their mind and to associate freely without
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          2  interference.  The USA PATRIOT Act defines "domestic

          3  terrorism" so broadly that organizations and

          4  individuals engaged in constitutionally protected

          5  political activity can be prosecuted as

          6   "terrorists."  For example, the arrest of persons

          7  who protested peacefully against United States

          8  military exercises at Vieques Island have been

          9  labeled as terrorism cases by the Justice

         10  Department.  New FBI guidelines on domestic spying,

         11  issued in May 2002, allow FBI agents to infiltrate

         12  political meetings, demonstrations and church and

         13  mosque services without any evidence of criminal

         14  activity.

         15                 The Bloomberg Administration has

         16  succeeded in weakening the 1985 Handschu Decree,

         17  which prevented the NYPD from infiltrating

         18  organizations engaged in lawful political activity.

         19  A vibrant democracy cannot tolerate such practices.

         20  By adopting Reso. 909, the City Council directs the

         21  NYPD to respect the right of individuals to engage

         22  in activities protected by the First Amendment.

         23                 Since 9/11, the government has

         24  deported thousands of people for minor violations of

         25  Federal Immigration Law, such as failure to file a
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          2  change of address within ten days.  Local police

          3  have increasingly become involved in enforcing

          4  Federal Immigration Laws, but the practice has

          5  seriously undermined trust of local police in

          6  immigrant communities.  Crime victims and witnesses

          7  to crimes are reluctant to speak with the police.

          8  Battered immigrant women are scared to call the

          9  police on their abusers.  In Midwood Brooklyn, the

         10  human and economic cost of these misguided practices

         11  has been devastating.  Tens of thousands have fled

         12  the Pakistani neighborhood.  Enforcement of Federal

         13  Immigration Laws has traditionally and appropriately

         14  been a Federal responsibility.  Reso. 909 states

         15  that enforcement of Federal Immigration Law is best

         16  left to Federal authorities.

         17                 Since 9/11, thousands of immigrants

         18  have been subjected to interrogation, detention and

         19  deportation based solely on, or principally upon

         20  their national origin or religious belief.  Shortly

         21  after September 11, 2001, the Department of Justice

         22  established a national registration and tracking

         23  system for young men who had entered the United

         24  States from Muslim, Arab and South African

         25  countries.  This policy was implemented in a manner
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          2  that treated innocent persons as criminal suspects

          3  solely because they matched a profile.

          4                 Community advocates and civil rights

          5  lawyers report that persons in certain immigrant

          6  communities are being stopped, questioned and

          7  detained without legal basis.  Existing NYPD policy

          8  directs police officers not to engage in racial

          9  profiling.  Reso. 909 calls on the police department

         10  to prohibit investigations based solely on a

         11  person's race, religion or national origin.

         12                 Congress passed the USA PATRIOT Act

         13  with almost no debate.  Never has a United States

         14  President signed so sweeping and far reaching a

         15  piece of legislation with so little deliberation by

         16  the Legislature.  Recently, we learned that

         17  political allies of the Justice Department secretly

         18  drafted the so- called PATRIOT Act II, which would

         19  grant the government authority to strip the

         20  citizenship of suspected terrorists.  The plain fact

         21  is that since September 11th, the Federal Government

         22  has undermined the checks and balances that are

         23  essential to a health democracy.

         24                 Resolution 909 seeks to restore the

         25  proper distribution of power among the Executive,
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          2  Legislative and Judicial branches of government.

          3  The country looks to New York City for its

          4  leadership.  Today, we will have a hearing on the

          5  PATRIOT Act as part of an effort to guarantee the

          6  Bill of Rights of not just New Yorkers, but all

          7  citizens of the United States of America.

          8                 We are joined in this hearing to my

          9  left, as always, Council Member Peter Vallone,

         10  Junior, the Chairman of our Public Safety Committee,

         11  and slightly to his right, next to him, is Council

         12  Member Michael Nelson, the Chairman of our Senior

         13  Committee and our Revenues Forecasting Committee.

         14  We will also be joined by other Members of the

         15  Committee who are engaged in other meetings, and who

         16  will be coming in and out throughout the course of

         17  these hearings.

         18                 At this point, we will start with our

         19  first panel who will be sworn in by counsel to this

         20  Committee, Matthew Tollin.

         21                 MR. TOLLIN:  Donna Lieberman from the

         22  New York Civil Liberties Union and Udi Ofer.  Please

         23  approach the witness stand.  Good morning.  Could

         24  you each raise your right hand?  Do you solemnly

         25  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give
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          2  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          3  truth?

          4                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  Yes.

          5                 MR. OFER: Yes.

          6                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you

          7  please, before reading your testimony, state your

          8  name and your position with the organization.

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  My name is Donna

         10  Lieberman.  I'm the Executive Director of the New

         11  York Civil Liberties Union.

         12                 MR. OFER:  Udi Ofer.  I'm the Project

         13  Director for the New York Civil Liberties Union's

         14  Bill of Rights Defense Campaign.

         15                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  I want to first thank

         16  you for conducting these hearings and for the

         17  leadership role that you've played Council Member

         18  Perkins, in defending the Bill of Rights of all

         19  Americans with regard to this particular Resolution

         20  and with regard to the February 15th demonstrations

         21  and protecting the right to protest there and many,

         22  many, other things.  New Yorkers owe you a deep debt

         23  of gratitude.

         24                 Udi Ofer and I present this testimony

         25  today in support of City Council Resolution 909,
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          2  which calls upon local, State and Federal officials

          3  to affirm and uphold our fundamental rights and

          4  liberties in the face of aggressive anti- terrorism

          5  initiatives taken by the Federal Government since

          6  September 11th.

          7                 Since then, the government has

          8  arrogated to itself expansive new police powers,

          9  supposedly to protect us against terrorism.  It is

         10  becoming increasingly clear, however, that in

         11  assuming these sweeping and unprecedented police

         12  powers, the government acted on a dangerous and

         13  discredited precedent, seeking to suspend

         14  constitutional rights in the name of preserving

         15  them.

         16                 It's now well documented that these

         17  new powers authorized by the USA PATRIOT Act, but

         18  not just that, by presidential directives, FBI

         19  regulation and even court rulings have seriously

         20  undermined the, our individual privacy, lawful

         21  political expression and due process of law.

         22  Government officials have been conducting detentions

         23  without charging people and without giving them any

         24  way to get out of detention, even if they're wrongly

         25  held.  They have been going over our personal
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          2  records, our library records, our financial records,

          3  our computer records, and monitoring our private

          4  communications without legal basis.

          5                 The standard of probably cause, which

          6  has served us so well as a constitutional standard

          7  for government invasions, for government

          8  eavesdropping and surveillance is now thrown out the

          9  window and courts are being turned into rubber

         10  stamps. They've engaged in widespread ethnic and

         11  religious profiling, and conducted secret judicial

         12  proceedings.

         13                 With Reso. 909, the Members of the

         14  City Council will assert that it's not necessary to

         15  violate our fundamental rights in order to protect

         16  our safety.  We can be safe and free. This

         17  Resolution calls for greater accountability and

         18  transparency in the exercise of these new post- 9/11

         19  executive powers, and it represents nothing very

         20  radical.  Rather, it is a reasonable and principled

         21  response to the unprecedented expansion of

         22  government powers over the past two years.  It's a

         23  restatement, that's all, of the fundamental

         24  principles at the heart of American democracies and

         25  it should be no more controversial that our own Bill
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          2  of Rights.

          3                 The campaign for Resolution 909 has

          4  been led by the Bill of Rights Defense Campaign.  A

          5  project of the New York Civil Liberties Union.  This

          6  is part of a nationwide grassroots movement to

          7  restore our, the rights that have been taken away

          8  since September 11th.  Since then, over 190

          9  counties, cities, towns and villages have passed

         10  similar resolutions, calling on government to

         11  restore our rights.  It's not just big cities like

         12  New York, and New York will indeed be the biggest,

         13  but we would join Chicago and Philly, as well as

         14  tiny towns like Sunset Valley, Texas and Ridgeway,

         15  Colorado.

         16                 This movement bridges the usual

         17  political divide in American politics.  You have

         18  testimony before you today from the American

         19  Conservative Union, also supporting the resolution,

         20  the gun owners of America and the American Eagle

         21  Forum.  You don't have to be a liberal or

         22  progressive to support the Bill of Rights, along

         23  with the American Civil Liberties Union, the Senate

         24  for Constitutional Rights, and people from the

         25  American Way of many others, and many others.
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          2                 The coalition comprises of over 80

          3  organizations. That should tell the Council

          4  something and we're glad that over, that 29 Council

          5  Members have signed on support the Resolution.

          6  Without going too much into the history, it's

          7  important that we recognize that the Bush

          8  Administration's campaign to erode our bill of, our

          9  fundamental freedoms in the name of protecting our

         10  freedoms, but it's not necessary, is, in keeping

         11  with a series of not very proud incidents over the

         12  course of our history.

         13                 The Palmer Raids, after World War I,

         14  which targeted members of the Russian immigrant

         15  community.  The internment of Japanese immigrants

         16  and Americans after World War II, just in case, a

         17  terrible moment in our history for which we have

         18  since apologized, but what good does that do in

         19  hindsight? The infamous witch hunts of the McCarthy

         20  era, which, during which the HUAC issued subpoenas

         21  to compel witnesses to admit their associations and

         22  to name names.  And, for the next two decades after

         23  that, the government's counter- intelligence

         24  campaign, COINTELPRO, that involved harassing,

         25  burglarizing and eavesdropping on government
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          2  critics, some of the same activities that USA

          3  PATRIOT Act would codify into legal right for the

          4  government nowadays in response to these 9/11

          5  attacks.

          6                 But, if we read the history of these

          7  outrages, there's always a counter- narrative, in

          8  which wiser voices respond to the hysteria.  To

          9  those who claim that times are so perilous and the

         10  risk of harm so great that we cannot tolerate

         11  democratic principles of freedom, there are other

         12  voices like ours that say we do not accept the

         13  argument that in order to preserve democracy, must,

         14  we must suspend individual freedoms.

         15                 With Resolution 909, the City Council

         16  will reject this argument and assert that our

         17  government can and must respond to the threat of

         18  terrorism in a manner that respects our

         19  constitutional liberty.  And now we'll hear from Udi

         20  Ofer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, let me

         22  just say thank you very much for your leadership on

         23  this very, very important civil rights and civil

         24  liberties matter.  And, more importantly, for the

         25  sake of this hearing, thank you very much for taking
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          2  your 17 page testimony, and delivering it in five

          3  minutes.  That leadership is the like of leadership

          4  that we expect to have throughout this hearing.  As

          5  you can see, it's a well attending hearing.  We have

          6  quite a few people that are interested and we

          7  obviously want to make sure that everyone is given

          8  their due right to be heard on this very, very

          9  important matter to our City and to our country, and

         10  with that in mind, thank you very much. Udi, please.

         11                 MR. OFER:  Thank you Council Member

         12  Perkins.  Good morning Council Member Nelson,

         13  Council Member Vallone.  In order to understand the

         14  need for Resolution 909, it is necessary to

         15  understand the scope and the consequences of the

         16  government's war on terrorism, and that is what I

         17  will do now.  And it is vital for the New York City

         18  Council to become involved in this national debate

         19  because the realignment of power within the Federal

         20  Government has a direct effect on law enforcement in

         21  New York City.

         22                 The Justice Department and the

         23  Department of Homeland Security are reporting, are

         24  reportedly prosecuting the war on terrorism in close

         25  collaboration with local police departments.  The
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          2  question we must ask is, to what extent is the New

          3  York Police Department coordinating its anti-

          4  terrorism activities with Federal law enforcement

          5  officials?  There is ample evidence that individual

          6  rights have been compromised in the order, in the

          7  effort to protect against acts of terror, and I will

          8  now briefly summarize the factual record that gives

          9  rise to this concern.

         10                 First, is the detention of Arab,

         11  Muslims and South Asian men, in the days, weeks and

         12  months following September 11th.  Hundreds, if not

         13  thousands, of Arab, Muslim and South Asian men were

         14  rounded up in the days, weeks and months following

         15  9/11, holding many of them for weeks without

         16  charges, in solitary confinement, and as direct

         17  suspects of the September 11 attacks, based

         18  principally or solely on their religion, ethnicity

         19  or national origin.

         20                 There's one story in the Inspector

         21  General's report from June 2, of 2003 that I

         22  recommend for everyone to read.  And that's of a

         23  Brooklyn resident who called the FBI TIPS hotline,

         24  in the weeks following 9/11, to report suspicious

         25  activity in the local bodega, a grocery store.  And,
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          2  the suspicious activity was as follows:  The store

          3  was suspiciously closed on the day after 9/11 and

          4  then reopened.  And, when it reopened, there were

          5  many Arab Muslim- looking men, spending time in that

          6  store, since it was owned by people of Arab descent.

          7  And, this activity seemed suspicious to the caller

          8  and he asked that the FBI respond.

          9                 In response, the FBI conducted a

         10  sweep of that bodega, grocery store, and along with

         11  the INS, detained anyone that was in that store and

         12  who was, whose immigration status had lapsed, and

         13  treated those individuals as direct suspects of the

         14  9/11 attacks.  Why did they treat them as such?

         15  Because they happened to be an unlawful status and

         16  happened to be at a grocery store in the days after

         17  the 9/11 attacks.

         18                 What it meant to be treated as a

         19  direct suspect of the 11 (sic) attacks was as

         20  follows:  You were held under a communications

         21  blackout and prohibited from receiving telephone

         22  calls, visitors or e- mail.  Family members of the

         23  9/11 detainees report that their relatives

         24  disappeared, that they were not allowed to get in

         25  touch with their relatives until weeks following
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          2  their detention.  In addition, they were denied

          3  access to counsel and when lawyers of family members

          4  called the Bureau of Prisons to inquire whether that

          5  particular person was housed there, staff persons

          6  would deny that person's presence in the Bureau of

          7  Prisons' facilities, even though they were indeed in

          8  that prison.

          9                 As I said, this is all documented in

         10  the June 2nd report of the Inspector General's

         11  Office.  So, these are not allegations made by civil

         12  liberties or immigrant rights groups. These are

         13  allegations made by the government's own Inspector

         14  General Office.  And in addition, in the Brooklyn

         15  Metropolitan Detention Center, according to the

         16  Inspector General, the detainees were subjected to a

         17  pattern of physical and verbal abuse.

         18                 In addition, there's been a policy of

         19  ethnic and religious profiling by the Federal

         20  Government since 9/11. Thousands and thousands of

         21  people of Arab, Muslim, South Asian descent have

         22  been detained, interrogated, fingerprinted or

         23  subjected to deportation proceedings based

         24  principally or solely upon national origin or

         25  religious belief.  How many of the 82,000 men who
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          2  registered under the Special Registration program

          3  had been charged with terrorism?  Zero.  How many of

          4  the at least 762 men of Arab, Muslim and Asian

          5  descent, who were detained for months, denied access

          6  to counsel, subjected to a pattern of physical

          7  abuse, were eventually charged with terrorism?

          8  Zero.

          9                 In addition, and I'll be brief, we've

         10  seen a vast expansion of government search and

         11  seizure and surveillance powers under the USA

         12  PATRIOT Act.  The government, the executive was

         13  given powers to do an end- run and bypass the

         14  Constitution and the courts.  It allows, the USA

         15  PATRIOT Act allows the FBI to go, literally, on a

         16  fishing expedition into a citizen's reading records

         17  and favorite Internet sites without having to

         18  provide any individualized evidence of suspension,

         19  of suspicion  For the government now to obtain your

         20  medical records, your library records, your

         21  financial records, it does not have to prove

         22  reasonable suspicion or probable cause.

         23                 To anyone in this room who has any

         24  sort of legal education, in particular, this should

         25  come as an extreme offense. The Fourth Amendment of
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          2  the United States Constitution is very, is very

          3  clear in its requirements of probable cause and

          4  reasonable suspicion.

          5                 I'll briefly also state -- okay, in

          6  summary, but, in summary, this Resolution is needed.

          7  It, everything that it calls for are things that are

          8  already afforded in the Bill of Rights and the

          9  United States Constitution.  It is as controversial

         10  as the Bill of Rights, and I'll end there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         12  much.  I want to acknowledge that we've been joined

         13  by the Chairwoman of our Health Committee,

         14  Councilwoman Christine Quinn, and the Chairwoman of

         15  our Mental Health Committee, Councilwoman Margarita

         16  Lopez.  Council Member Leroy Comrie, the Majority

         17  WHIP and the Chairman of our Rules Committee is

         18  about to join us.  At this point, I'd like to

         19  recognize Council Member Peter Vallone, who has a

         20  comment, I believe, and perhaps a question to ask.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I have both.

         22  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  You said that the country

         23  might look to this City Council for leadership, and

         24  if it does, I hope it realizes that myself, as

         25  Public Safety Chair of the City gave 3,000 lives in
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          2  the fight against terrorism fully supports the

          3  PATRIOT Act.

          4                 The PATRIOT Act is a large part of

          5  the reason why this country has not been attacked

          6  again after September 11th. The PATRIOT Act may take

          7  the law to some places where its never been, but

          8  this country is now in a place it's never been,

          9  facing a threat it's never faced before.  Public

         10  safety has to be our priority.  The lives of our

         11  children, my children, everyone else's children,

         12  must be our priority, not the rights of suspected

         13  terrorists.

         14                 Now, that being said, I'd just like

         15  to ask a few questions of our guests.  You both

         16  mentioned library records, that seems to be a big

         17  cause now in the country, libraries are taking up

         18  arms against this.  First of all, do you have any

         19  evidence that library records anywhere throughout

         20  the country have been requested by the government?

         21                 MR. OFER:  Yes.  Library records have

         22  definitely, 100 percent been requested --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- How many

         24  by the government?

         25                 MR. OFER:  -- By the government.
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          2                 It is impossible to know, and that is

          3  particularly the problem that we find ourself in, is

          4  that the government is acting in complete secrecy.

          5  Now the library records have not been requested

          6  under Section 215 of the PATRIOT Act, rather they've

          7  been requested under Section 505, which is a

          8  provision called the National Security Letters.

          9                 And, in addition, we have librarians

         10  who've called us and said, on a Saturday evening,

         11  the FBI will show up to the check- out counter, and

         12  just intimidate whoever's working at that time, to

         13  give up records.  So, they will not come with a

         14  search warrant, they will not come with a Section

         15  215 Order, and they will not come with a subpoena.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That's very

         17  interesting, but no one's ever heard of that, other

         18  than, apparently, you. That librarians being

         19  intimidated by FBI agents to just give over records

         20  without a subpoena.  Right, I'm sure.  But let's get

         21  to, stuff they've all heard about now.  You

         22  understand that library records, as a former

         23  prosecutor, I can tell you this, library records

         24  were always able to be subpoenaed by the government,

         25  correct?
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          2                 MR. OFER:  Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Correct.  So

          4  when the government was fighting the mob, they could

          5  subpoena library records with a judicial subpoena,

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. OFER:  Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Now, in

          9  fighting terrorism, the government could subpoena

         10  books, records, let's say, on how to build a bomb

         11  from a suspected terrorist, correct?

         12                 MR. OFER:  I will not call it a

         13  subpoena.  The difference is, you're correct in that

         14  judicial subpoenas were always allowed under the

         15  law.  The difference is, under the USA PATRIOT Act,

         16  and Section 215, you do not have to prove any

         17  suspicion of criminal activity, in order to get a

         18  Section 215 Order.  Judicial subpoenas have to be

         19  related somehow to criminal activity.  Section 215

         20  Orders do not, whatsoever.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That's

         22  because we're not preventing criminal activity,

         23  we're preventing suspected attacks to a occur on

         24  this country.  That's the big difference there, and

         25  in order to get a judicial subpoena, I'm going to
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          2  read, they have to prove that the documents are

          3  relevant to protecting against international

          4  terrorism, correct?

          5                 MR. OFER:  Relevant to --

          6                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- They don't have to

          7  prove it --

          8                 MR. OFER:  -- Right, terrorism.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, So, I

         10  mean --

         11                 MR. OFER:  -- But they don't have to

         12  prove anything --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- I'm glad

         14  that you understand it, because most people on the

         15  street are running around, even this Resolution

         16  says, little or no judicial oversight.  Every --

         17                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- There is no --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Request

         19  for library records --

         20                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- Judicial

         21  oversight.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  This is a

         23  judicial subpoena.

         24                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  The court, these are

         25  subpoenas that are gotten from the PHISA courts --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Yes

          3                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  And the PHISA courts

          4  do not have any discretion to reject these

          5  subpoenas.  They are required to rubber stamp them

          6  without questioning or inquiring --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- That is

          8  not true --

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- Into the proof

         10  that is presented --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- That is

         12  not true --

         13                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- There is a

         14  requirement --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- No --

         16                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- That the

         17  government state that it is relevant to a terrorism

         18  investigation, end of inquiry, case closed.  That's

         19  not probable cause.  That's not proof.  That's not

         20  the Fourth Amendment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, we

         22  disagree on that --

         23                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- We do --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- A judge

         25  has no power to not approve a subpoena.  I've never
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          2  heard that before until today.

          3                 MR. OFER:  'cause this is not an

          4  Article Three judge.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Now, I

          6  understand that --

          7                 MR. OFER:  -- It's not an Article

          8  Three judge.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, and I

         10  keep hearing about secret proceedings.  Do we think

         11  maybe there should be a public proceeding when you

         12  go in to get a subpoena to search Al Queda

         13  headquarters in say, New York City?  Should that be

         14  a public proceeding?

         15                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  There, nobody has

         16  said that the government should not be allowed to

         17  engage in secret proceedings when it's necessary.

         18  However, the government, under the leadership of

         19  President Bush and Attorney General Ashcroft, have

         20  decided to make secrecy the norm, to engage in

         21  secret immigration hearings, to have secret courts,

         22  whether or not it is necessary to protect our

         23  national security --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- So we

         25  agree --
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          2                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- The fact that

          3  something is relevant to terrorism doesn't meant

          4  that our government can act, needs to act in secret.

          5  You know, we have had a number of successful

          6  criminal prosecutions of terrorists that have

          7  occurred out in the open and in accordance with the

          8  fundamentals of due process that every person

          9  charged with a crime is entitled to and that we all

         10  need, as a democracy, to be able to count on.  There

         11  is nothing about terrorism that should change the

         12  operating norms of our criminal justice system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I don't

         14  think I could disagree with you more, but I'm glad

         15  you stated that on the record.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         17  Vallone --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Yes --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  -- I'm going to

         20  ask you to take a second round, because I'm getting

         21  a long list of folks that are interested in raising

         22  some questions.  So, let me just come right back to

         23  you, okay?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I just

         25  began, but sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I bet you have,

          3  I just, but that's, we're going to have time, but

          4  Council Member Margarita Lopez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just want to

          6  make a short statement and it's in regard to the

          7  following thing.  Since a Catholic social worker, I

          8  worked for many, many years guaranteeing the rights

          9  of people with mental illness, not to be put behind

         10  closed doors against their will.  I fought very hard

         11  against that, because I wanted to make sure that

         12  they are entitled to the same rights that everybody

         13  else are, and that the only circumstances in which

         14  people with mental illness can be put in a

         15  psychiatric ward, against their will, is when they

         16  are endangering others or endangering themself.

         17  That is the reason I am so much against the PATRIOT

         18  Act, called, in reality, the traitor act, and that's

         19  the reason why I'm here making very clear my

         20  position.

         21                 I am a prime sponsor of this

         22  Resolution because I fundamentally believe that the

         23  decision of the fathers and mothers of this country

         24  to make this country a democratic country, including

         25  on it the Bill of Rights, is what allow and permit
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          2  the greatness of our nation.  Saying that, my

          3  following question for both of you, how many people

          4  have been prosecuted at this point, under the

          5  PATRIOT Act process?  And, how many of them were

          6  able to be prosecuted by information that they found

          7  utilizing the so- called PATRIOT Act?

          8                 MR. OFER:  You know, the problem is,

          9  is that the exact number is impossible to tell,

         10  because the, the precise point that we're trying to

         11  make and what this Resolution is trying to solve, is

         12  that almost all of the activities of the government

         13  under the USA PATRIOT Act are conducted in complete,

         14  100 percent secrecy.  We do not know.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then, that

         16  means that we don't even know if this so- called

         17  PATRIOT Act is worth it, because we don't even find

         18  at the end of the day if they are prosecuting

         19  somebody or not, or if they finding somebody guilty

         20  of terrorism, correct?  Not even that, what I'm

         21  trying to get at is the following thing:  The

         22  PATRIOT Act is, has been promulgated nationwide to

         23  tell us that they're going to take care of the

         24  problems of terrorism in our country, but at the end

         25  of the day, that the PATRIOT Act is letting the
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          2  people of this country know how they are having

          3  control over terrorism?

          4                 MR. OFER:  The examples that we do

          5  know, and this actually also relates to a remark

          6  made by Council Member Vallone, actually showed that

          7  when the government is using the USA PATRIOT Act, or

          8  anything, or labeling cases as terrorism cases, it

          9  usually has nothing to do with terrorism.

         10                 First of all, a New York Times

         11  article about two weeks ago, three weeks ago, the

         12  Sunday paper, front page story, was about how the

         13  USA PATRIOT Act is being used mostly in cases on the

         14  war on drugs, that are not involved in terrorism.

         15  Now, we need to remember, part of the justification

         16  for these broad powers, was that we needed it to

         17  fight terrorism, and that was the point that you

         18  make Council Member Vallone.  But we're seeing that

         19  when the government does release information, most

         20  of the information is regarding cases not involved

         21  with terrorism.

         22                 Now, another point, in the first two

         23  months of 2003, the government labeled 56 cases as

         24  terrorism cases, 56 cases.  The Philadelphia

         25  Inquirer conducted a report into these 56 cases, 41
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          2  of them had nothing to do with terrorism.  Can I

          3  tell you something?  Eight of those cases were of

          4  the Vieques protestors on the Island of Vieques who

          5  protested the naval bombing of that island, and who

          6  engaged in civil disobedience. Eight of those people

          7  who were arrested for criminal trespass were labeled

          8  by the Justice Department as terrorism cases.  This

          9  is how the government is viewing terrorism right

         10  now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  In reality, at

         12  this point, we are as ignorance as we were in regard

         13  of the declaration of war to Iraq.  We still don't

         14  know what is the purpose of the war and we still

         15  don't know what is the purpose of this PATRIOT Act.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I have a quick

         17  question I want to ask.  There is a term that has

         18  been used lately in identifying certain individuals

         19  called enemy combatant, and there are at least two

         20  American citizens, Yasser Hamdi, who was captured in

         21  Afghanistan and Jose Padilla, who was arrested in

         22  Chicago Airport in 2002, in communicado detention,

         23  as enemy combatants.  Would you explain that term

         24  and how that term relates to these two individuals,

         25  or any other individuals that you are familiar with?
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          2                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  The term enemy

          3  combatment, combatants is an invention of Attorney

          4  General Ashcroft.  There is no precedent for

          5  treating somebody as an enemy combatant.

          6                 Jose Padilla has been held in a

          7  military stockade, not pursuant to the PATRIOT Act,

          8  not pursuant to any Act of Congress, and certainly

          9  not pursuant to the United States Constitution.

         10                 He's been held in a military stockade

         11  for over a year now.  He has been denied access to

         12  counsel.  He has been denied any charges.  He hasn't

         13  been charged with anything.  He has no trial date.

         14  He can't even prove himself innocent, if we were to

         15  topple the presumption of innocence on his head.

         16  He's just being disappeared.  Why?  Because he's an

         17  enemy combatant, maybe.

         18                 What do we know about Jose Padilla?

         19  We know that one day, our Attorney General got on TV

         20  and said, we have possibly a dirty bomber, and

         21  that's the end of the proof.  Okay? So, the Attorney

         22  General has, is not acting pursuant to the PATRIOT

         23  Act or anything else.  He's making it up as he goes

         24  along, and notwithstanding the fact that the United

         25  States District Court has ordered the government to

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  give Joe Padilla access to counsel, the United

          3  States Government has refused. This is not a proud

          4  moment, and it's something that the City Council

          5  should stand up and oppose.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

          7  Vallone, you have some additional questions that you

          8  want to raise?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, let me

         10  just also say what this Attorney General said about

         11  Jose Padilla, murder conviction, weapons possession

         12  conviction, arrested coming in from Pakistan.

         13  According to the government, he traveled to Egypt,

         14  Saudia Arabia, other favorite Al Queda haunts

         15  (phonetic) while in Afghanistan in 2001.  He sold Al

         16  Queda bigwig, Zabeda (phonetic) on a plan for

         17  blowing up radioactive bombs.  Just some of the

         18  stuff that's already out there from the Attorney

         19  General's Office about Jose Padilla.  Not just he's

         20  suspected of a dirty bombing-

         21                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- And nothing that

         22  has been sworn to or stated under affirmation in

         23  court --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Right,

         25  because he's not a --
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          2                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- There are no

          3  charges --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- U.S.

          5  Citizen --

          6                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- Against him.  He

          7  is a U.S. Citizen.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Oh, okay,

          9  he's --

         10                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- This is --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Alright,

         12  he's --

         13                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- He is a U.S.

         14  Citizen --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- He's,

         16  yea, he's one of the few --

         17                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- Born and raised --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Right --

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  -- In New York City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Alright,

         21  alright, alright, he's one of the few that is

         22  actually an American citizen, which does make his

         23  case troublesome, you're absolutely right.  But, he

         24  is someone -- never gets old.  So, Jose Padilla,

         25  there is a lot more known about him, apparently,
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          2  some that I didn't know out there, than he's just a

          3  suspected dirty bomber.

          4                 But, let me also say, I agree with

          5  you, that what you said about this Act being used in

          6  non- terrorism cases.  And, it's because of the good

          7  work of people like you that this Act was limited,

          8  for supposedly to terrorism cases.  Because

          9  originally, the government sought it to be much

         10  broader than it was, and it was advocates like the

         11  people in this room that stopped that from

         12  happening.  And, if that's happening, it shouldn't

         13  be, that the PATRIOT Act is being used for non

         14  terrorism purposes, so we agree.  Do you guys, I'm

         15  just confused, are you against the entire PATRIOT

         16  Act or just portions?

         17                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  Just portions and

         18  other Acts by the government.  And I just want to

         19  say one thing, I don't want there to be any mistake,

         20  I think that the allegations in the press about

         21  somebody being a dirty bomber, potentially, are

         22  enormously important.  They should be pursued.  I

         23  mean, if somebody is plotting a dirty bomb, we want

         24  that person behind bars.  We just don't want that

         25  person to be rotting in jail, disappeared, without
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          2  having a lawyer and without being charged, and

          3  without having his day in court.  That's what it's

          4  about. This isn't about throwing out our criminal

          5  justice system.  We want to preserve that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  A noble

          7  goal.  You mentioned sneak and peek warrants, or I

          8  believe you, the government going through your

          9  property without people knowing. Can you please tell

         10   -- I happen to know what it is, but can you please

         11  tell the room what a sneak and peek warrant is?

         12                 MR. OFER:  Sneak and peek are, it's

         13  under Section 213 of the PATRIOT Act, it allows the

         14  government to conduct a search and to seize property

         15  with delaying notice, and the notice can be delayed

         16  for weeks, months or years.

         17                 Now, the government has always had

         18  the authority to delay notice.  But, what the

         19  PATRIOT Act did, is that it did something similar

         20  with the Section 215 Orders, in that it made

         21  everything automatically, it allows the government

         22  to automatically delay notice without having to

         23  prove the same sort of constitutional standards that

         24  the courts have stated in the past it has to prove,

         25  in order to delay notice.
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          2                 The notice requirement is one of the

          3  foundations or fundamentals of the Fourth Amendment,

          4  as I'm sure you know, and that no one, none of us

          5  are stating that sometimes it's not in our interest

          6  to delay notice.  But, what the PATRIOT Act did is

          7  that it made that process almost automatic.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I'm glad you

          9  understand that, because most people don't.  I keep

         10  hearing that the government can come in with no

         11  notice, they do need to give notice within a

         12  reasonable time, and it does, again, is overseen by

         13  a judge, we disagree as to the extent of the judge's

         14  involvement in this situation.  But --

         15                 MR. OFER:  -- But a reasonable time

         16   --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- If it's

         18  with a subpoena --

         19                 MR. OFER:  --  Could be weeks --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- And it's

         21  a reasonable time --

         22                 Mr. OFER:  -- Months or years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, it

         24  hasn't been years --

         25                 MR. OFER:  -- But you don't have --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- It's

          3  never been years, you say that, but --

          4                 MR. OFER:  -- It has been two years

          5  since the passage of the PATRIOT Act --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: -- Right --

          7                 MR. OFER:  -- Well, it will be on

          8  Sunday --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Has

         10  anyone been waiting two years to be told about a

         11  warrant that's been, no. So, it has  --

         12                 MR. OFER:  -- But the difference is

         13   --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Never

         15  been years.  I guess, you say it could be years, but

         16  it's a reasonable time. Now, do we agree that it's a

         17  good idea to not tell Al Queda that you're going to

         18  come in and search their headquarters before you do

         19  it?

         20                 MR. OFER:  You have to prove that

         21  it's a good idea would be a good idea, but what the

         22  PATRIOT Act did, is that you don't have to prove

         23  anything --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- Well,

         25  that's wrong. You're absolutely wrong.  We had this
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          2  discussion before, it's overseen by a judge, and

          3  they do have to prove that it's related to

          4  terrorism.  They can't just come in and get a

          5  subpoena.

          6                 MR. OFER:  No, the standard --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- We

          8  disagree on that --

          9                 MR. OFER:  -- I wouldn't even call

         10  it, I mean it's not a, I wouldn't even call it a

         11  subpoena, 'cause it's a completely different

         12  standard.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  I'm

         14  going to defer to later on the rest, thanks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         16  much Council Member Vallone.  I believe Council

         17  Member Nelson, are you involved in another Committee

         18  activity?  Okay, would you like to have a question

         19  now, or would you defer to Councilwoman Lopez,

         20  because I know you -- okay, Council Member Lopez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just would

         22  like to go back to Jose Padilla, Jose Padilla's

         23  Puerto Rican?

         24                 MR. OFER:  He was born in Brooklyn,

         25  but he could be of Puerto Rican descent.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  He's Puerto

          3  Rican descent. That is my knowledge.  The Puerto

          4  Ricans are United States citizens?

          5                 MR. OFER:  They definitely are.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Since 1917,

          7  and I want to clarify that not by our request, but

          8  by the imposition of the United States of America.

          9  Saying that, did the family of Jose Padilla have the

         10  opportunity to see him?  That Jose Padilla have

         11  access to a lawyer?

         12                 MR. OFER:  No.

         13                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Do we know if

         15  a lawyer has been assigned to his defense?

         16                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  There's a lawyer

         17  handling the appeal.  But he's not been able, they

         18  have not been allowed in to see him.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then is a

         20  lawyer assigned to his appeal, but the lawyer has

         21  not been able to see him?  That the lawyer has been

         22  able to talk to Jose Padilla?

         23                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That the

         25  lawyer had been able to deny, confirm or put
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          2  together any information in regard of the

          3  accusations against Jose Padilla?

          4                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Does Jose

          6  Padilla was found with any weapons of mass

          7  destructions or dirty bombs?

          8                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  We don't know.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That Jose

         10  Padilla is known to be in any particular place of

         11  United States?

         12                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  He's in a military

         13  stockade, from what we know.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Where,

         15  specifically?

         16                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  South Carolina.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Is

         18  specifically in South Carolina where?  Do we know?

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  We don't know for

         20  sure, but I'm sure the government does.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And why we

         22  don't know any of this is?  Why the family of Jose

         23  Padilla has not been able to talk to him?  When this

         24  country guarantees the right to bail, the right to a

         25  speedy trial, the right to be confronted with your
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          2  accusers, the right to be able to be charged in a

          3  rational amount of time, why is that?

          4                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  Well, the

          5  government's statement of why, other than vague

          6  statements about fighting terrorism, is very

          7  revealing.  The government says that it's important

          8  that he not be able to talk to a lawyer, so that

          9  they can effectively interrogate him, so that they

         10  can create a relationship of dependency on the

         11  interrogators, and so that he will not be distracted

         12  and their interrogation undermined by him being able

         13  to rely on a lawyer.  In other words, is this a

         14  rationale for torture?  We don't know.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is a

         16  fascinating statement that you have made, because as

         17  a person who grew up in the sixties and the

         18  seventies, I remember looking into Pinochet kind of

         19  policies in Chile, and Somosa in Nicaragua, where

         20  all of the rights that you mentioned were eliminated

         21  in both countries at the time.  And although I am

         22  not implying that it's a dictatorship in this

         23  country, sure look to me that the intention to

         24  destroy the Fourteen Amendment is on the way.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  I want to focus a little bit on the concerns

          3  of the, that you mentioned with regard to the

          4  librarians.  I understand that librarians have more

          5  or less organized in opposition to the PATRIOT Act.

          6  I know that one highly noted librarian, who is a

          7  Congressman, Major Owens is amongst that group of, I

          8  wonder if you can sort of elaborate for us exactly

          9  what's going on from that point of view.

         10                 MR. OFER:  Well, from the perspective

         11  of librarians, this is an attack on everything that

         12  they stand for. Under Section 215, the government

         13  can go in and ask for the library records without

         14  having to prove reasonable suspicion or probable

         15  cause.  But, in addition to that, there's a gag

         16  provision that's a part of all those Orders, and the

         17  library staff workers prohibited from telling

         18  anyone, anyone, that they were approached by the

         19  FBI.

         20                 And Council Member Vallone, that is

         21  one of the reasons that it's impossible to know the

         22  actual numbers, because part of the PATRIOT Act, a

         23  major part of it, are gag provisions that prohibited

         24  the subject of the search from every knowing that

         25  they were being searched.
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          2                 So, libraries have gathered all over

          3  the country and taken a stand on this issue.  In

          4  reaction, Attorney General Ashcroft called them

          5  hysterical, he called them the puppets of the ACLU

          6  and this has done nothing but backfire against him.

          7  You know, the library, the idea of a library and

          8  library workers, are sort of at the heart of our

          9  democracy.  The idea of public information, access

         10  to information, or being able to take even

         11  unconventional thoughts.  You know what? Maybe

         12  someone wants to read a book about Islamic

         13  fundamentalism, maybe someone does want to read a

         14  book about the history of terrorism. That's not a

         15  criminal act.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  What about a

         17  book on building bombs?

         18                 MR. OFER:  If it's available in the

         19  library, it's not a criminal act.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  But it's

         21  something the government should know about.  We

         22  disagree.

         23                 MR. OFER:  Well, that's at the heart

         24  of our democracy.  By the way, I want to go back to

         25  these sneak and peek searches.  One quick sentence.
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          2  The United States House of Representatives voted in

          3  July, 309 to 118 to defund Section 213 of the

          4  PATRIOT Act, sneak and peek searches.  So, the

          5  position that you're taking is a position against

          6  319 of Representatives in the House of

          7  Representatives, and a big portion of those

          8  Representatives were republicans, and conservative

          9  republicans. This is a bipartisan issue.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Let me say, following this panel, we will

         12  have a panel of relatives of 9/11 victims, Pat

         13  Perry, a mother of an NYPD police officer, lost on

         14  9/11, and Adele Welty, from the group 9/11 Families

         15  for a Peaceful Tomorrow.  But prior to that panel

         16  coming up, we'll take a brief five-minute break and

         17  then we'll resume.

         18                 Michael Nelson. They're going to

         19  finish up, break and then we'll have the next panel.

         20  Are you interested in a question at this point?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  We know there

         22  are untold amounts of people trying to destroy this

         23  country, and I believe that you feel there are

         24  untold amount of people that want to destroy the

         25  Bill of Rights, so I understand and appreciate that.
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          2                 I heard some of what you said.  I

          3  apologize, I had to go to an Aging Committee

          4  meeting.  I would like to see more specific proof of

          5  abuse.  The librarian, the name, whose terrorized by

          6  the CIA or the FBI, or whatever other one of our

          7  groups.  If you did mention it when I was out, I

          8  apologize.  And I heard that you said that it's

          9  difficult to get all of this information, that part

         10  I did hear.  We do need to protect the Bill of

         11  Rights, there's no doubt about that, protect our

         12  country.

         13                 But I also believe that we have to

         14  have a country in tact to protect.  These murderous

         15  maniacs, I believe the country was extremely lax to

         16  have a Mohammed Atta and his murderous cohorts to

         17  get away with what they got away with.  I mean,

         18  they're taking flight lessons, we all know, and

         19  they're learning how to fly and how to turn a plane,

         20  and like, you know, no red bells went off or

         21  anything, the CIA doesn't get in touch with the FBI,

         22  and it was such a mess.  And, what happened here

         23  obviously was extremely horrible.  You would agree

         24  our country was woefully lax prior to 9/11 and I'm

         25  afraid to say we may still be lax?
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          2                 MR. OFER:  The problems that we had

          3  prior to 9/11 was not a lack of the appropriate law.

          4    We had all the legal tools that were required to

          5  stop the September 11th attacks. What was missing is

          6  communication, is collaboration, there was a

          7  cultural gap between different law enforcement

          8  agencies, such as the CIA and FBI.  It was not a

          9  legal gap.  And I'll use the example of what we can

         10  do, or an example of what, of bad practices with the

         11  Midwood section of Brooklyn, which I believe is your

         12  Council District --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  -- Just north

         14  of it, yea,

         15                 MR. OFER:  Okay, just north of it,

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just north of

         17  it, yea.

         18                 MR. OFER:  Well, in the Midwood

         19  section of Brooklyn alone, anywhere between 10,000

         20  to 20,000 residents have left, have been deported or

         21  have been detained since 9/11.  Why? Because of

         22  government policies that make, force them to

         23  register with the United States Government when they

         24  haven't done anything wrong, and government policies

         25  where they were rounded up in the weeks following
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          2  9/11 because of their ethnicity or national origin.

          3  Has anyone been charged with terrorism because of

          4  these round- ups?  No.

          5                 The point is, in order to fight, to

          6  win this war on terrorism, we must do it in an

          7  efficient and deliberate way. And the way that the

          8  government is responding right now is in a 100

          9  percent inefficient manner.  The only people that

         10  have been charged with terrorism has been Mousaui,

         11  and the indictment of Mousaui on terrorism had

         12  nothing to do with the USA PATRIOT Act, had nothing

         13  to do with these, with these post- 9/11 powers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well, just

         15  one last thing, are you 100 percent sure that these

         16  people were arrested?  I mean, it appears to be that

         17  it was, because of their ethnicity and/or their

         18  religion?

         19                 MR. OFER:  I'm not the one who's 100

         20  percent sure, the Inspector General Office of the

         21  Justice Department is the one that's 100 percent

         22  sure.  He issued a report on June 2nd of 2003, and

         23  I'll be more than happy to send you a copy, that

         24  detailed what happened to the September 11th

         25  detainees.  And in that report, he is the one that
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          2  said that the round- ups were based on ethnic and

          3  religious profiling, and that the detainees were

          4  subjected to "a pattern of physical and verbal

          5  abuse."

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, I just

          7  wanted to throw these out to stir the pot a little

          8  bit and get some more discourse on this.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, we like

         10  our pot stirred --

         11                 MR. OFER:  -- We have plenty of

         12  people to testify for you --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  -- Let me ask

         14  that the documentation that you have available with

         15  regard to the librarians, with regard to the

         16  Inspector General's Office, please make it available

         17  to the Committee, so that all of the Members can

         18  that.  I think it would be very helpful for all of

         19  us, and I appreciate your testimony.  I appreciate

         20  your work on behalf of civil rights and civil

         21  liberties.

         22                 We're going to take a brief recess

         23  and then we'll go, as I indicated earlier, to our

         24  panel of relatives of 9/11 victims.  Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  We'll take a

          4  brief five minutes recess.

          5                 (Recess taken)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Once again, we

          7  are asking to come forward Pat Perry, mother of an

          8  NYPD officer lost on 9/11 and Adele Welty, from the

          9  organization, 9/11 Families for a Peaceful Tomorrow.

         10                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good morning, could you

         11  please each raise your right hand.  Do you solemnly

         12  swear or affirm the testimony you're about to give

         13  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         14  truth?

         15                 MRS. PERRY:  I do.

         16                 MS. WELTY:  I do.

         17                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you,

         18  before reading your testimony, state your name.

         19                 MRS. PERRY:  To the honorable Members

         20  of the New York City Council and other dignitaries

         21  gathered in this chamber, my name is Patricia Perry,

         22  and I represent my husband, James, and our children,

         23  Janice and Joel, in speaking of their brother, our

         24  son, John William Perry.

         25                 John graduated from New York

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  University School of Law and practiced immigration

          3  law until he had the opportunity to enter the NYPD

          4  Police Academy and become a New York City cop.  He

          5  wanted to experience the law from a different

          6  perspective.  He also joined the New York State

          7  Guard and was awarded the rank of Major.

          8                 John was an athlete who completed

          9  four New York City marathons and numerous five K

         10  races, including the New Year's Eve Central Park

         11  Midnight Run for 18 years and races between NYPD and

         12  the Fire Department of New York.  He joined the

         13  Manhattan Swim Club and took part in Hudson River

         14  races, right over here, wherever the Hudson River

         15  is.

         16                 Among his many other interests, John

         17  was also an active member of the New York Civil

         18  Liberties Union.  He served on the Board of the

         19  Nassau Chapter.  He was an avid student of the

         20  Constitution and supported personal freedom, as

         21  granted in the Bill of Rights, including the

         22  Libertarian Party interpretation of the Second

         23  Amendment, which his parent's thought should apply

         24  only to the ownership of a musket, but John was a

         25  member of the NRA.  He represented friends and

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  colleagues pro bono and served as a volunteer Small

          3  Claims Court Arbitrator.

          4                 I am here to honor my son and to

          5  speak on his behalf, because I believe he would

          6  wholeheartedly support Resolution 909.  In his off-

          7  duty life, among many other things, he demonstrated

          8  against the Rockefeller Drug Laws and he helped the

          9  Kings County Society for the Prevention of Cruelty

         10  to Children.  He was always ready if someone had a

         11  problem that he could help solve.

         12                 After eight years on the force, John

         13  decided he was ready to return to the full-time

         14  practice of law.  In the early morning of September

         15  11th, 2001, he went to One Police Plaza, just to the

         16  east of this chamber, to submit his resignation to

         17  the NYPD.  He had an offer from a firm in the

         18  Woolworth Building, just across the street from

         19  here.

         20                 When the first plane struck the World

         21  Trade center, John took back his badge, went to the

         22  police store and bought a $35.00 shirt with the

         23  insignia of the police department and he joined

         24  hundreds of other police officers, New York City

         25  Firefighters and other rescue workers, to assist the

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  hundreds of people escaping that inferno.

          3                 Just as John supported the need of

          4  law enforcement agencies to keep citizens safe from

          5  what he called were the bad guys, he also strongly

          6  believed that citizens must be free of government

          7  interference in their lives.  He would strongly

          8  object that his death, at the hands of terrorists,

          9  would justify overturning the sacred principles of

         10  this nation.  He would believe that we must continue

         11  to be safe and free.

         12                 On behalf of my son, John William

         13  Perry, and in memory of the men and women from 80

         14  countries who died on 9/11 at the World Trade

         15  Center, the Pentagon and on Flight 93, I ask you to

         16  reaffirm the principles that have made this nation

         17  strong. Support Resolution 909 and let freedom ring.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 MS. WELTY:  I am here for the members

         20  of the FDNY lost in the line of duty on September

         21  11th at the World Trade Center.  I'm also a member

         22  of Peaceful Tomorrows, a group of 9/11 families, who

         23  have channeled our grief into action for peace and

         24  justice.

         25                 Members of Peaceful Tomorrow began by
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          2  protesting this government's rush to war in October

          3  of 2001, as the Administration geared up to bomb

          4  Afghanistan.  Before though, most of us outside the

          5  government knew who was responsible for the attacks.

          6  Peaceful Tomorrow's members traveled to Afghanistan

          7  to express commonality and empathy with the families

          8  of civilian victims of the bombings.  Subsequently,

          9  members also traveled to Iraq, prior to the present

         10  onset of war, to reach out to civilians and express

         11  our opposition to the spread of violence.

         12                 On March 17th of this year, three

         13  members of Peaceful Tomorrows, along with 51 other

         14  non-violent, non-violent protestors, were arrested

         15  in Washington, DC, in front of the Capital Building

         16  while peacefully demonstrating against the war. We

         17  were detained for seven hours, without access to a

         18  telephone, and denied the right to contact an

         19  attorney, with no food or water, even upon request.

         20                 I asked to come here today to support

         21  Resolution 909 against both the USA PATRIOT Act and

         22  some provisions of the Homeland Security Act.  I

         23  believe the PATRIOT Act poses a serious threat to

         24  the exercise of our constitutional rights.  Most

         25  particularly, our rights to due process of law.
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          2                 Appealing to the fear of terrorism,

          3  the Administration and the Congress, the

          4  Administration has gathered support among many

          5  Americans, for sweeping executive powers of

          6  detention and surveillance, including the

          7  investigation of lawful First Amendment activity.

          8                 Yet, while Americans citizens are

          9  under surveillance at the library and in book

         10  stores, while our e- mails can be monitored and our

         11  homes searched, we know now that within hours of the

         12  September 11th attacks, Saudi families were given

         13  air passage out of this country, at a time when no

         14  other planes were flying, when traveling by air was

         15  forbidden, even to those Americans trying to get

         16  home to find their family members in the Pentagon or

         17  the World Trade Center.  Private jets were allowed

         18  to fly around the country, pick- up members of the

         19  Bin Laden family, and fly them out of this country

         20  to Paris, out of the reach of U.S. Officials.  At

         21  the same time, hundreds of Muslims were rounded up,

         22  interrogated without representation, held without

         23  bond, and shipped out of this country for minor visa

         24  infractions. Many are still being held, and have not

         25  been charged with a crime.
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          2                 Although some sections of the Act

          3  were written before 9/11, the Congress passed the

          4  PATRIOT Act just after the attacks, without debate

          5  over its consequences, during a time of extreme

          6  anxiety over our safety and deep emotional stress

          7  over our losses.  The people of this country were

          8  reeling in shock when the legislation was ran

          9  through the Congress so fast that many of our

         10  representatives voted for it, by their own

         11  admission, without reading it.

         12                 It is not only immigrants who have

         13  been denied their rights as residents of this

         14  country, American citizens are, as we speak, being

         15  monitored and detained.  This Administration has

         16  used the tragedy of 9/11 and the deaths of our

         17  family members to push its agenda of regime change

         18  abroad and repression here at home.  I see my son's

         19  death and the deaths of every precious soul that

         20  died used again and again to scare this country into

         21  war, to undermine environmental protections, and to

         22  concentrate power in the hands of the Executive

         23  Branch, in ways that abrogate far too many of our

         24  liberty interests.

         25                 In recent statements, the Attorney
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          2  General has said that those who raise the specter of

          3  a loss of liberty are aiding terrorists, and under

          4  the PATRIOT Act, he has the discretion to decide who

          5  amongst us will be labeled a terrorist. I have no

          6  doubt that Mr. Ashcroft is an honorable man, who is

          7  vigorously pursuing his duty to search out

          8  terrorists and make this country a safer place, but

          9  I believe that the PATRIOT Act is an overreaching

         10  attempt to rectify the intelligence failures prior

         11  to 9/11.

         12                 There is no doubt we must find

         13  terrorists and try them in a court to of law.  But,

         14  we must continue to be a nation that abides by the

         15  rule of law, so carefully crafted in our

         16  Constitution, refined by the Amendments and

         17  repeatedly clarified by case law, to protect our

         18  freedom.  The freedom that tens of thousands of

         19  American soldiers have died to maintain.  A way of

         20  life that distinguishes us from those countries

         21  whose regimes we wish to change.  I urge the City

         22  Council to pass this Resolution and to help stop our

         23  civil liberties from being eroded before it's too

         24  late, before our basic freedom is so compromised, it

         25  will be hard pressed to win it back.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          3  much for that very, very moving testimony.  Let me

          4  say, on behalf of all my colleagues, that we extend

          5  our condolences to you and to all the families that

          6  lost loved ones in 9/11.  I join you from a personal

          7  point of view because my cousin, Clyde Fraiser

          8  Junior (phonetic) was also lost to our family on

          9  that fateful day, and in his name we are here also

         10  in support of the PATRIOT Act.  So, thank you very

         11  much for your testimony.  Are there any questions

         12  from my colleagues?  Any comments?  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 At this point, we'll go to our next

         15  panel, a panel of civil rights activists.  We have

         16  representative Bryan Pu Folkes, the Executive

         17  Director of the New Immigrant Community Empowerment.

         18    We have a representative from AALDEF, Margaret

         19  Fung.  Okay, is there anyone from -- and then we

         20  also would like to add to this panel, Nancy Chang,

         21  the Senior Litigation Attorney for the Center for

         22  Constitutional Rights.

         23                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good morning, could you

         24  each raise your right hand.  Do you solemnly swear

         25  or affirm that the testimony you are about to give
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          2  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          3  truth?

          4                 MR. PU- FOLKES:  I do.

          5                 MS. FUNG:  I do.

          6                 MR. QUIAH:  I do.

          7                 MS. CHANG:  I do.

          8                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you,

          9  before giving your testimony, state your name and

         10  the organization you're affiliated with.  You could

         11  start on the right, on my right, your left.

         12                 MS. CHANG:  My name is Nancy Chang.

         13  I'm an attorney at the Center for Constitutional

         14  Rights, and I thank the Committee for providing the

         15  Center with this opportunity to testify on behalf of

         16  Resolution 909.

         17                 The Center is a progressive legal and

         18  educational organization that is in the process of

         19  litigating a number of challenges to anti- terrorism

         20  measures that have emerged since September 11th, and

         21  we are very proud to be part of the dynamic

         22  grassroots movement that is breathing new vitality

         23  into the Bill of Rights.

         24                 On September 11th, New Yorkers were

         25  forced to bear witness to the toppling of our City's
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          2  landmark Twin Towers and the loss of thousands of

          3  our relatives, friends, neighbors, City firefighters

          4  and police.  Regrettably, during the two years that

          5  now separate us from that day, New Yorkers have also

          6  been forced to bear witness to the Bush

          7  Administration's implementation in the name of

          8  national security, of seemingly endless succession

          9  of anti- terrorism measures that threaten the

         10  democratic values that define us as a nation.

         11                 My fellow panelists will describe how

         12  non- citizens have disproportionately borne the

         13  brunt of these assaults on our freedoms.  I would

         14  like to discuss briefly the, how our privacy, both

         15  that of citizens and non- citizens, has come under

         16  threat under the USA PATRIOT Act.

         17                 This Act, which the Bush

         18  Administration pressured a Congress panicked by fear

         19  into passing just six weeks after the attacks, is a

         20  long- standing Executive Branch wish list of

         21  aggressive law enforcement tools that enhances the

         22  government's ability to track our e- mail and

         23  Internet usage, conduct sneak and peek searches,

         24  provide, obtain our secret personal, sensitive

         25  personal records from third- parties, conduct roving
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          2  wiretaps and evade the Fourth Amendment's probable

          3  cause requirement under the Foreign Intelligence

          4  Surveillance Act.

          5                 The Department of Justice's

          6  insistence on keeping secret its utilization of

          7  these sweeping new powers should give us all pause,

          8  so too should the steady stream of reports from the

          9  Bush Administration of schemes to conduct

         10  surveillance on everyday Americans.  Operation TIPS,

         11  a Stasi- like citizen spy program that Congress had

         12  the good sense to quash when it enacted the Homeland

         13  Security Act, would have had millions of us spying

         14  on the rest of us.  And reports of mega databases

         15  that would indiscriminately swallow up all of our

         16  personal records, accurate or not, and

         17  instantaneously search them for suspicious profiles

         18  continue to pop up under different guises.

         19                 John Poindexter proposed the Total

         20  Information Awareness or TIA program, when he was

         21  employed by the Department of Defense and made its

         22  motto, Knowledge Is Power.  The Transportation

         23  Security Agency is hard at work at, on something

         24  called CAPPS II, which stands for Computerized

         25  Assisted Passenger Prescreening System.  And State
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          2  and local law enforcement agencies have announced

          3  plans to create something called MATRIX, the

          4  Multistate Anti- Terrorism Information Exchange.

          5                 New York must tell big brother that

          6  he is not welcome in this City.  A police network of

          7  video surveillance cameras, sneak and peek searches

          8  by our police and programs styled on John

          9  Poindexter's Total Information Awareness project

         10  have no place here.

         11                 At the same time that secrecy in

         12  government is on the rise and surveillance of

         13  citizens, tolerance for public dissent is on the

         14  wane.  You all recall when John Ashcroft, our

         15  Attorney General, made the bone- chilling

         16  pronouncement before a Senate Committee in December

         17  of 2001, that those who scare peace loving people

         18  with phantoms of lost liberty only aid the

         19  terrorists and give ammunition to America's enemies.

         20  Unfortunately, Attorney General Ashcroft's

         21  wrongheaded conflation of dissent with a lack of

         22  patriotism seems to have its adherents in this City.

         23                 To the dismay of all who understand

         24  that protest is essential to the health of a

         25  democracy, the NYPD denied United for Peace and
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          2  Justice's application for a permit to conduct a

          3  march on February 15th to protest United States

          4  military intervention in Iraq.  And, by doing so,

          5  gave our City the unwanted distinction of being the

          6  only major City in the entire world not to have a

          7  march on that day.  The NYPD went on to employ

          8  brutal force against, and illegally arrest, numerous

          9  lawful protestors at the stationary rally that took

         10  place on that day and at subsequent anti- war

         11  demonstrations.

         12                 To make matter worse, the NYPD has

         13  successfully moved in court to modify the Handschu

         14  Consent Decree, which, for the last several decades,

         15  has stood as a bar to political surveillance and has

         16  prevented the --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Ms. Chang, I'm

         18  going to have to ask you to get to the end please,

         19  because --

         20                 MS. CHANG:  I'm actually there --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, great.

         22                 MS. CHANG:  Barred the resurrection

         23  of the Red Squad.  In conclusion, the Center for

         24  Constitutional Rights urges the City Council to cast

         25  a vote for democracy by approving Resolution 909.
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          2                 MR. PU- FOLKES:  Good morning

          3  Chairman Perkins and Members of the Governmental

          4  Operations Committee.  My name is Bryan Pu- Folkes,

          5  and I'm the Executive Director of New Immigrant

          6  Community Empowerment or NICE.  Founded in 1999,

          7  NICE is a cross cultural, grassroots, civil rights

          8  and immigrant advocacy organization that engages in

          9  community organizing, advocacy and public education,

         10  to ensure new immigrant and all disenfranchised New

         11  Yorkers are informed, active and influential in

         12  civic, governmental and public affairs.  NICE works

         13  with thousands of new immigrants and new Americans

         14  in the City of New York.  I present testimony today

         15  on behalf of NICE, in support of Resolution 909.

         16                 September 11, 2001 cannot and must

         17  not be forgotten.  On that sad and tragic day, the

         18  United States, and New York City in particular,

         19  suffered the worst terrorist attack in our nation's

         20  and City's history.  We send our prayers to the

         21  families of the victims and we send our heartfelt

         22  gratitude to everyone who is helping our nation, our

         23  cities, our citizens and our residents to heal.

         24                 Although many acts of heroism have

         25  helped our nation to move forward, sadly, the US

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  (sic) PATRIOT Act is not one of those heroic acts.

          3  In a sick and ironic manner, the United States

          4  Government is trampling on the very freedoms, rights

          5  and values that the country seeks to defend.  While

          6  the rights and freedoms of every United States

          7  citizen and resident has been severely injured, my

          8  testimony today focuses on the impact of post- 9/11

          9  laws and policies on Arabs, Muslims and South Asians

         10  who are citizens and residents of the greatest, most

         11  diverse, and some say, the most tolerant City in the

         12  world, New York City.

         13                 Existing Federal laws and government

         14  policies have created a climate ripe for hate crimes

         15  in New York City and in the rest of the country.

         16  When the Federal Government enacts rules that tell

         17  us that certain people get pulled off planes, it

         18  sends a blatant and strong message that this is a

         19  group to worry about.  By requiring male immigrants

         20  from Middle Eastern, South Asian and other Muslim

         21  countries to register with authorities, the

         22  government is signaling that all males from those

         23  countries are dangerous.  The massive government

         24  round- up and detention of immigrants and Americans

         25  alike, from Middle Eastern, South Asian and Muslim
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          2  countries, sends a signal that these communities are

          3  dangerous.

          4                 Then it is no surprise that after the

          5  aftermath of September 11, 2001, the New York Police

          6  Department has reported that hate crimes against

          7  people believed to be of Middle Eastern descent has

          8  dramatically increased, and persists to remain at a

          9  higher rate than pre- 9/11 days, although the NYPD

         10  hate crime statistics have dropped for all other

         11  groups.

         12                 NICE has been vigorously engaged in

         13  fighting hate crimes since its inception in 1999,

         14  and has witnessed first- hand the recent spate in

         15  hate crimes against people perceived to be Arab or

         16  Muslim.  The case of the recent attack on Mr. Singh-

         17  Gill and his family is illustrative of what has been

         18  happening, with some amount of frequency, in various

         19  forms in our streets, in our schools and in our

         20  places of employment.

         21                 On August 3, 2003, Mr. Singh- Gill,

         22  an Indian American Sikh, his wife, a cousin and two

         23  children aged eight and ten, were returning home to

         24  Woodside Queens after spending the day looking to

         25  buy a home in Long Island City Queens.  Outside of
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          2  their home in Woodside Queens, they were viciously

          3  attacked by three white men, who called them a Bid

          4  Laden family, I quote, and told them to go back to

          5  their own country.  Mr. Singh- Gill, like many Sikh

          6  men, wears a turban.  The attackers spat on the

          7  family, pushed Mr. Singh- Gill to the ground, held

          8  the cousin in a choke hold, hit the wife twice in

          9  the back and then ran only when heroic bat- wielding

         10  neighbors chased them away.

         11                 The attackers were never apprehended

         12  or caught. The Singh- Gill family, whose Ford

         13  Explorer bears a bumper sticker that says, Proud to

         14  be an American and a Sikh, continued to be

         15  traumatized that at any moment they can again fall

         16  prey to senseless youth, or anyone, who may think

         17  they are helping the U.S. In their efforts to rid

         18  the United States of Bin Laden sympathizers.  The

         19  wife said one family friend had to cut his hair and

         20  shave his beard to avoid harassment.  She said, and

         21  I quote, "It's a shame that we have to change who we

         22  are because of the ignorance of others."

         23                 Recently, NICE held an immigrant- led

         24  town hall meeting in Jackson Heights Queens in which

         25  numerous men, women and children of all ages, from
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          2  the Latino, Bangladeshi, Indian, Pakistani, Chinese,

          3  Sikh, Arab, Muslim and other communities turned out,

          4  to recount stories of difficulty they have

          5  encountered that are related to misguided 9/11

          6  policies.  A number of Council Members attended as

          7  well, and we were happy to have Council Member Peter

          8  Vallone, Junior there as well.

          9                 I will tell you the story of Mrs. T,

         10  which demonstrates the senseless targeting of Arabs,

         11  and the dangerous hacking away of civil liberties

         12  and rights.  Mrs. T is a United States legal

         13  permanent resident from Columbia, who lives in

         14  Brooklyn and has been married to an Algerian man,

         15  Mr. T, for five years.

         16                 They met in a restaurant in Brooklyn

         17  eight years ago, and although they couldn't

         18  communicate in a common spoken language, they fell

         19  in love, and now Mr. T speaks Spanish fluently,

         20  along with Arabic, Berber, French and English.  In a

         21  quest to realize the American dream, Mr. And Mrs. T

         22  opened a bodega together.  Although they eventually

         23  had to close the bodega, Mr. T gained employment at

         24  another bodega in the neighborhood, and Mrs. T found

         25  a job in a neighborhood center to assist the
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          2  elderly.

          3                 Shortly after September 11, 2001, the

          4  FBI, for no stated reasons, raided the bodega, and

          5  removed all the Arab men working there, including

          6  Mr. T.  As part of the post- 9/11 round ups, all of

          7  the men were put in a Federal detention, or put in

          8  Federal detention without a single charge lobbed

          9  against them. Although no terrorist- related charges

         10  were levied against Mr. T, he was detained for

         11  approximately eight months, and during that time, he

         12  was transferred several times to different jails,

         13  without any legal representation.

         14                 The husband was ultimately deported

         15  without any charge of criminal activity, and Mrs. T

         16  was notified of this fact on the day of deportation.

         17  Mrs. T said he was finally deported though he had no

         18  links to terrorism or any other criminal activity.

         19  Now, the authorities say that I have to wait for at

         20  least five years before he can return.  I don't know

         21  what to do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  You'll have to

         23  summarize right now please, because your time has

         24  run out.

         25                 MR. PU- FOLKES:  Okay, in summary,
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          2  New Immigrant Community Empowerment supports New

          3  York City Council Resolution 909 in order to restore

          4  a great measure of freedom, equity, and balance in

          5  our country.  There are now close to 200 communities

          6  nationwide that have passed resolutions against this

          7  pernicious legislation.  New York City must not lag

          8  behind at this important juncture in American

          9  history.  New York City must send a strong signal

         10  that it continues to stand for justice and humanity

         11  and must strongly oppose all laws and policies that

         12  are contrary to those beliefs and principles.  We

         13  urge all Members of the Council to cast their votes

         14  in support of Resolution 909.  Thank you for the

         15  opportunity to testify.

         16                 MS. FUNG:  Hi, my name is Margaret

         17  Fung.  I'm Executive Director of the Asian American

         18  Legal Defense and Education Fund and to my right is

         19  Samuel Quiah, a Community Organizer, whose been

         20  working in the Bangladeshi and South Asian

         21  communities throughout New York City.

         22                 We're here today to urge the City

         23  Council to pass Resolution 909, because it will

         24  reaffirm New York City's commitment to protecting

         25  civil rights and civil liberties of all New Yorkers.
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          2    And, it's especially critical for the thousands of

          3  South Asian, Arab and Muslim immigrants who continue

          4  to face the post- September 11th backlash of

          5  discrimination, hate violence, police harassment and

          6  detention.

          7                 AALDEF is a 29- year old civil rights

          8  organization that defends the rights of Asian

          9  Americans through litigation, advocacy and community

         10  education.  Since September 11th, we have provided

         11  legal representation to over 100 South Asian,

         12  Indonesian, Arab and Muslim men, who are held for

         13  months in immigration jails in New York and New

         14  Jersey.  We launched a major campaign to educate

         15  immigrants about their legal rights, distributing

         16  over 15,000 brochures in various Asian languages.

         17  And after the announcement of the Special

         18  Registration call- in program, we counseled over 800

         19  individuals, who were required to report to

         20  immigration for fingerprinting and interrogation.

         21                 New York City is now the municipality

         22  with the nation's largest Asian American population.

         23    Our numbers have increased over 71 percent in the

         24  last decade, to over 880,000, and we're now ten

         25  percent of the City's population.  And, in the first
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          2  two weeks after the September 11 attacks, we

          3  received 200 calls from Asian Americans, primarily

          4  South Asians, who reported to us incidents of hate

          5  violence, harassment and racist slurs.

          6                 We were heartened when President Bush

          7  first made strong statements that discrimination

          8  against Arabs, Muslims and South Asians would not be

          9  condoned, and since that time, we have seen how the

         10  Bush Administration's actions have belied those

         11  words.  Attorney General Ashcroft has used

         12  immigration laws to target racial and ethnic

         13  minorities and has used the tragedy of September

         14  11th to expand government surveillance and restrict

         15  privacy rights.

         16                 The City Council must make a clear

         17  and unequivocal statement that the constitutional

         18  rights of New Yorkers must not be compromised in

         19  order to protect public safety.

         20                 A number of other speakers have

         21  covered issues of government secrecy.  I'll just add

         22  that AALDEF was a Plaintiff in the lawsuit, Center

         23  for the National Security Studies v. Justice

         24  Department, which sought the release under the

         25  Freedom of Information Act of the names of
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          2  individuals arrested and detained after September

          3  11th.

          4                 In June of this year, the DC Federal

          5  Appeals Court upheld the Justice Department's

          6  refusal to disclose details of those detentions.

          7  But, what I want to say, is that in that period of

          8  time, we received so many calls from individual's

          9  families who wanted to know where their relatives

         10  were.  They had not, they had no idea whether their

         11  relatives had been the victims of crimes, had been

         12  subjected to harm, whether they were in New Jersey,

         13  New York, what charges were brought against them.

         14  Unfortunately, the court's acceptance of the

         15  Department of Justice's refusal to disclose was

         16  especially egregious in light of the Inspector

         17  General report, which documented widespread

         18  government abuses in the treatment of immigrants

         19  after September 11th.

         20                 Secret immigration proceedings run

         21  contrary to our democratic ideals.  And, I, in one

         22  particular case that we have before the Board of

         23  Immigration Appeals, our attorney was actually

         24  subject to a gag order, one of the first attorneys

         25  under a law that was passed in April of 2002, which
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          2  permits protective orders in immigration cases, even

          3  when there's no evidence that a public hearing would

          4  endanger national security.  We think that's a

          5  mistake and we think that Resolution 909 supports

          6  the principle that we should have open government

          7  and the individual should not be detained without

          8  access to counsel or subjected to secret

          9  proceedings.

         10                 The second issue of concern is police

         11  immigration collaboration.  Many South Asian

         12  immigrant families, who have no connections to

         13  terrorism have lived in fear of being stopped on the

         14  street, or being visited at home by the FBI,

         15  immigration or New York City Police Department.

         16                 We're representing one Pakistani

         17  family of five who overstayed their visas, the

         18  police knocked on their doors on the rouse of

         19  investigating a burglary that the family had

         20  reported two years.  They then detained the father,

         21  turned him over to immigration authorities.  We did

         22  win a motion to re- open his immigration

         23  proceedings, but he remains in detention and his

         24  wife and three young children are only able to see

         25  their father once a week during visiting hours.
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          2  Resolution 909 recognizes that immigration laws

          3  should be enforced by Federal authorities, not the

          4  local police.

          5                 And, finally, the issue of Special

          6  Registration. Thousands of South Asians, Arabs and

          7  Muslims have been required to report to immigration

          8  service.  This has been, they do not know that they,

          9  that by coming in and obeying the laws, many wanted

         10  to do, that they would be subject to arrest,

         11  detention or deportation.

         12                 And, since May of this year, the Bush

         13  Administration has reported that it's collected

         14  information on 82,000 people, 13,000 of them have

         15  been subjected to deportation hearings, and I want

         16  you to remember the visual of 26 Federal Plaza, as

         17  people were lined up in the middle of Winter, early,

         18  in the early hours of morning, waiting outside for

         19  their appointments, and then, in some cases, waiting

         20  as long as 24 hours to see an immigration officer,

         21  only to be released to show up for a later date.

         22                 We think it's time for New York City

         23  to join the many cities, towns and counties that

         24  have said that they will uphold civil rights and

         25  civil liberties, and we urge you to pass this
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          2  Resolution and reaffirm your commitment to the City

          3  of New York and all of it's immigrants and citizens

          4  alike.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          6  much. Any questions?  Council Member Margarita

          7  Lopez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  When you said

          9  that people were requested to register, can you

         10  describe what is the registration procedure that

         11  they had to go through?

         12                 MS. FUNG:  Yes, actually what

         13  happened was that many, first of all, from November

         14  of 2002 until April of this year, in different, in

         15  different cycles, men over the age of 16, were, from

         16  25 different countries, mostly Muslim countries,

         17  were required to register.  They needed to call in

         18  and appear in person.  And, what they found out,

         19  first of all, was that they were asked very

         20  intrusive questions, including things about credit

         21  card history, their place of worship, their

         22  frequency of prayer, their family members living

         23  outside of the United States, their roommates and

         24  living arrangements, their career ambitions, their

         25  student, their college curriculums.
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          2                 Some of these men actually had visa

          3  applications that were pending, based on family or

          4  employment relationships, or possibly political

          5  asylum applications that were still, that still

          6  needed to be adjudicated.  But, what happened was,

          7  that they, first of all, would be waiting for hours,

          8  sometimes -- they were told that, basically,

          9  immigration service said that they had the right to

         10  counsel.  In fact, our attorneys were very often not

         11  permitted to go with individual registrants up to

         12  the tenth floor when they were subject to

         13  investigations.

         14                 I think, what happened, was that some

         15  were handcuffed for as long as, one man from

         16  Afghanistan was actually handcuffed for eight hours

         17  and detained for 24 hours, and eventually released,

         18  after, and given an appointment to appear at another

         19  time.  Clearly, these are not the people who are the

         20  terrorists that the government is claiming to be

         21  searching for, and this procedure of targeting

         22  people from particular countries for this very

         23  burdensome process that the government, frankly, was

         24  unable to handle with its existing staff, that

         25  really shouldn't be repeated, and we're hoping, and
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          2  we're going to be calling on the Bush Administration

          3  not to re- institute this Special Registration

          4  program again this year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then the

          6  Special Registration program was predicated on what

          7  principle?

          8                 MS. FUNG:  It was based on the idea

          9  that, that the United States should better track

         10  visitors and newcomers to the United States.  And,

         11  obviously, we have no objection to that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  In other

         13  words, with the purpose of developing a data about

         14  the individuals who are here, who have applied for

         15  some kind of legal status?

         16                 MS. FUNG:  It's basically, the

         17  purpose was to require people to report if they were

         18  visiting the United States, as well as if they, if

         19  they were here, and they had a green card, they did

         20  not necessarily have to register, if they did not

         21  come from certain countries.  The point was that it

         22  was intended to monitor and track visitors to the

         23  United States --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- I

         25  understand that, I'm trying to get to a piece of
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          2  information that I'm curious to have. I just want to

          3  understand how these individuals were target, that

          4  they were target because they have a student visa,

          5  because they, you know, can you be a little bit

          6                 MS. FUNG:  -- Yes --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Specific

          8  about that?

          9                 MS. FUNG:  Yes, they were nationals

         10  from particular countries that had entered the

         11  United States during a particular period of time,

         12  and who were, who had particular kinds of visas, and

         13  yes, it had, it was a program designed to increase

         14  and create databases to track people who were in

         15  this country --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Can you

         17  tell me what kind of visas these individuals hold?

         18                 MR. QUIAH:  If you were here on a

         19  student visa, on a work visa, on a visitor visa, any

         20  of those visas, if you were only here for a certain

         21  amount of time, you had to register, over six, if

         22  you had a visa that's over six months --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Okay --

         24                 MR. QUIAH:  -- Anybody who had a

         25  visitor visa that was less than six months was not
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          2  required to register.  But, if you had any type of

          3  visa that was over six months, you, in fact, had to

          4  register.  This did not apply to green card holders.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, then you

          6  register, and that information that they collected,

          7  where is it?  Where it went?  Who used it and, for

          8  what purpose?

          9                 MR. QUIAH:  Well, from what we know

         10  of, most of that information has been used to put

         11  people into deportation proceedings, on top of it

         12  being a tracking system.  Of the 82,000 people that

         13  have registered, 13,000 people have already been in,

         14  put into deportation proceedings, and this is being

         15  used by, I believe they call themselves now, the

         16  U.S. Customs and Immigration Enforcement.

         17                 And, this is, what's really alarming

         18  is that the people, the key word is that they went

         19  to comply.  They were not told that, there was no

         20  transparency or honesty even, that like if you come

         21  and register, you know, we will let you go, and you

         22  know, nothing will happen, this is just a database.

         23  But, people went to register and then they were told

         24  that we are going to put you into deportation

         25  proceedings.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  May I know

          3  what are the specific countries that they target on

          4  this registration program?

          5                 MR. QUIAH:  Sure, sure.  Well, there

          6  were 25 counties, they were divided in four groups.

          7  The first group being Iran, Iraq, Syria, Sudan.  I

          8  don't have all the counties in front of me, oh, here

          9  they go, okay.

         10                 Okay, Group One, and this applies to

         11  men and boys over 16, Libya, Iran, Iraq, Sudan,

         12  Syria.  Group Two, Afghanistan, Algeria, Bahrain,

         13  Eritrea, Lebanon, Libya, Morocco, North Korea, Oman,

         14  Qatar, Somalia, Sudan, Syria, Tunisia, United Arab

         15  Emirates, or Yemen.  Group Three, Pakistan, Saudia

         16  Arabia, Group Four, Bangladesh, Egypt, Indonesia,

         17  Jordan and Kuwait. And, you don't have to be

         18  geographic experts to know that the super majority

         19  of these countries are Muslim.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then those

         21  four groups that you mentioned, why they were given

         22  numbers? Group one, group two, do you know?

         23                 MR. QUIAH:  Yes, yes, because they

         24  were given separate registration dates.  The first

         25  call- in date was in November, and that was for
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          2  Group One, and then another group was given a

          3  separate registration date.  So, the last, Group

          4  Four, actually had to register between February and

          5  April, whereas Group One had to register between

          6  November and December, Group Two, December and

          7  January and Group Three, January and March.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And the 1,300

          9  people who were deported, that they were detained

         10  immediately that they went to register or after?

         11                 MR. QUIAH:  There were given, right

         12  now, there, what they were given was a notice to

         13  appear.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  After the

         15  registration took place?

         16                 MR. QUIAH:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And they came

         18   --

         19                 MR. QUIAH:  -- To court --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- But did

         21  they knew what was the purpose?

         22                 MR. QUIAH:  No, that's the problem.

         23  That they went to register without knowing fully

         24  what was the purpose of registration.  All that was

         25  told to registrants before they went, registered,
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          2  was that you were not able to get any type of future

          3  immigration benefit if you did not comply.  So, --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Okay, but

          5  the time that they came, they registered, did they

          6  learn that they were going to be called again in

          7  there?  Did they learn --

          8                 MR. QUIAH:  -- Once they were issued

          9   --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- In that

         11  process of registration, that they were going to be

         12  facing possible deportation at that point --

         13                 MR. QUIAH:  -- When they were --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Did they

         15  learn that?

         16                 MR. QUIAH:  No, when they, when they

         17  went to the tenth floor, which is known as

         18  investigations, where they were not given access to

         19  legal counsel, after investigations, if they were

         20  found out of status, they were given a notice to

         21  appear, which means they had to come before an

         22  immigration judge at an immigration court, at a

         23  later date.

         24                 So, if they didn't have any criminal

         25  violations against them, if it was just an
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          2  immigration overstay or some other immigration

          3  violation, they were able to leave.  But, they were

          4  given a notice to appear.  And, that means, once

          5  you're given a notice to appear, that means you are,

          6  they have sufficient evidence to put you into

          7  deportation proceedings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  How long it

          9  took for those 1,300 people to be deported after the

         10  day that they voluntarily registered?

         11                 MR. QUIAH:  It can take, depending on

         12  if they can afford a lawyer, the process can be

         13  prolonged three, four, five months.  But, if they

         14  were not able to get any kind of legal

         15  representation, able to find out if any relief that

         16  they can apply for, some have been deported in as

         17  quick as, you know, two, three months.  So, the

         18  notice to appear, depending on what group you're in,

         19  could be later, like a lot of Bangladeshi's, who

         20  were group four, just get going to court now,

         21  because their notice to appears were issued last.

         22  But, other groups have already gone.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  My last

         24  question, that any of this was done under the

         25  principles of the so- called PATRIOT Act?
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          2                 MR. QUIAH:  This was done, it wasn't

          3  specifically part of the PATRIOT Act, but it was

          4  called the NSEERS program, which was done from, done

          5  out of the Department of Justice.  But, the PATRIOT

          6  Act definitely gives the power of these types of

          7  programs to exist.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That's your

          9  interpretation. I'm asking very specific, if any one

         10  of you know if this was done under the principles of

         11  the ideas of the PATRIOT Act, putting that together?

         12                 MS. FUNG:  Well, I think the point is

         13  that in the political climate where the US (sic)

         14  PATRIOT Act was enacted right after September 11th,

         15  this was yet another, this was yet another program.

         16  And, just remember, this was not, this was not

         17  legislation.  This is policy that has been put into

         18  place by the Justice Department.  And, I also want

         19  to just be sure that you understand it's not 1,300

         20  hundred people who have been put into deportation,

         21  it's 13,000 people have been put into deportation

         22  proceedings as a result of reporting for Special

         23  Registration.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Last question.

         25    Do you think that INS is sexist because not a
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          2  single woman was called?

          3                 MS. FUNG:  I think there are a lot of

          4  problems, I think there are a lot of problems with

          5  immigration, and --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Forgive me

          7  for my being facetious, but it's fascinating how the

          8  perception, the message, the continuing of the

          9  humanization of males in people of colors' culture

         10  is are they are criminal and they belong in jail, or

         11  they are not good daddies, then, and it's this

         12  double message that is constantly sends in our

         13  communities also, about women being second- class or

         14  second- class kind of person.  I imagine that in

         15  this case it's good, because we are not considered a

         16  terrorist. I imagine that that's what this is.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         19  Vallone.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, thank

         21  you.  Thank you all for coming down, and Bryan, it's

         22  good to work with you on this.  And, I actually

         23  don't know the answers to these questions, so if

         24  anybody could jump in.

         25                 What was the immigration status of
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          2  the 19 terrorists who attacked New York City?  I

          3  could be wrong, but I understand that they were all

          4  were here illegally.  Do we have any information to

          5  dispute that?  And the countries of origins of these

          6  terrorists, are they all, I assume they're all on

          7  the list of countries that are targeted by this

          8  registration?  I'm going to take that for a yes.

          9  And, the terrorists were all men over 16, no women,

         10  that one I happen to know was correct.  Okay, no

         11  further questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         13  much for your testimony and your work on behalf of

         14  your respective communities and on behalf of the

         15  City.  Those are important questions.  If you or any

         16  of your colleagues are able to get those answers,

         17  please don't hesitate to let them know.  We, by the

         18  way, will also look for those answers.  Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 We are now going to have another

         21  panel.  We're going to have from the Judson Memorial

         22  Church, Reverend Peter Laarman, and representing the

         23  Campaign of Dennis Kucinich, candidate for

         24  President, Bob Juresky (phonetic).  Peter Cooperman

         25  of St. Mary's Episcopal Church, is he available?
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          2                 MR. TOLLIN:  Could you each raise

          3  your right hand. Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

          4  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 REVEREND LAARMAN:  I do.

          7                 MR. JURE SKY:  I do.

          8                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Before

          9  giving your testimony, please state your name and

         10  the organization you are affiliated with.  Before

         11  that, the Chair has a few words to speak.  Mr.

         12  Laarman, to the right, Reverend.

         13                 REVEREND LAARMAN:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.

         15                 REVEREND LAARMAN:  Chairman Perkins,

         16  members of the Council, Members of this Committee.

         17  I'll be brief in respect to our time today.  I'm the

         18  Pastor of an American Baptist Church in Greenwich

         19  Village.  I'm also the co- founder of the Forum of

         20  Concerned Religious Leaders, an interfaith group

         21  that was created on the eve of the bombing of

         22  Afghanistan, and I'm the volunteer president of a

         23  relief fund for the Windows on the World workers,

         24  representing over 60 countries, many of them

         25  Muslims.  We've distributed over three and half
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          2  million dollars to people who are mostly back of the

          3  house workers.

          4                 I want to say that what New York does

          5  in respect to the USA PATRIOT Act is very different

          6  from what other cities in the country do.  Because

          7  of New York's size, the scope of our City, we are a

          8  City State, in effect, but also, obviously, because

          9  we were the City that was attacked, and so people

         10  will look to us for leadership. They'll look to us

         11  for an intelligent reasoned response to this

         12  legislation.

         13                 I want to address, as a minister, I

         14  want to address the question of fear and what people

         15  do when they're very afraid.  In my congregation,

         16  people were terrified, and many people came directly

         17  from the inferno and we opened the church for over

         18  60 hours continuously.  And, by the second evening,

         19  we were saying, we feel fear and we feel anger, and

         20  what else do we fear?  What else do we fear?  How do

         21  we reach the point, through fear, to some kind of

         22  discernment about what we're going to stand for,

         23  even under conditions of extreme trauma?  I think

         24  now, at this distance from the attack on New York,

         25  we can plainly see that what we ought to do with
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          2  fear is behave in a way that is genuinely patriotic

          3  and cling to the things that make us stronger, not

          4  weaker, which is the fundamental freedoms guaranteed

          5  under the Constitution.

          6                 We are here today in a chamber, in a

          7  building that's graced by history, and I'm always

          8  mindful when I'm in an 18th Century or early 19th

          9  Century place, that these achievements, and they are

         10  achievements, represented in the Bill of Rights, and

         11  in the fundamental freedoms, were things that people

         12  had to sacrifice and struggle with for decades and

         13  decades and decades, and we ought not, we must not,

         14  in these surroundings, and at this time in our

         15  nation's history, we must not surrender these things

         16  without some serious examination of the precious

         17  legacy that is, that is ours, and that we hope to

         18  grant to other people around the world.  That is the

         19  point of the American experiment.

         20                 I'll conclude by saying that, that in

         21  my time when I'm not working on sermons and so

         22  forth, I do read American history and I just

         23  concluded the Joseph Ellis book called Band of

         24  Brothers.  The interesting thing about the constant

         25  iteration of these people in frock coats and tri-
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          2  corn hats, is that people know who they are, but

          3  hardly know what they thought and where it came

          4  from.  And, so I hope that this is an historic

          5  moment for our City and for all of us.  I hope that

          6  we will be mindful of our history, not as a theme

          7  park, but be mindful of our history as a living

          8  legacy.  Thank you very much.

          9                 MR. JURESKY:  Thank you very much for

         10  this opportunity to read a statement from the

         11  Congressman. Congressman Dennis Kucinich is a

         12  supporter of this Resolution and this is his

         13  testimony.

         14                 Honorable Council Member Perkins,

         15  Honorable City Council Members, fellow Americans and

         16  concerned people present here today.  On this

         17  historic day, with similar bills defending our

         18  Constitution and Bill of Rights, having been passed

         19  in 185 cities and three States, I extend my support

         20  and admiration for your efforts in New York City.  A

         21  City so painfully wounded by the attacks on her and

         22  our nation on September 11th, 2001, but a City also

         23  whose suffering must not be used to dismantle piece

         24  by piece our unique system of governance.

         25                 I have introduced in Congress the
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          2  Benjamin Franklin True PATRIOT Act, the first

          3  comprehensive civil liberties bill to restore

          4  liberty and freedom in American.  With the title of

          5  this bill, we invoke and recall the words and spirit

          6  of a great American, who stated:  Those who would

          7  give up essential, essential liberty to purchase a

          8  little temporary safety, deserve neither liberty nor

          9  safety.

         10                 24 months after the September 11th

         11  attacks, this nation has undergone a dramatic

         12  political change, leading to an unprecedented

         13  assault on the United States Constitution and the

         14  Bill of Rights.  The tone was set on October 26,

         15  2001, when Congress passed the USA PATRIOT Act, a

         16  bill that permits the government to conduct secret

         17  Internet searches, to enter American homes without

         18  showing a warrant, and to grab reading lists,

         19  financial records and health records based on

         20  suspicion, not fact.

         21                 Other provisions in the PATRIOT Act

         22  and those adopted post- 9/11 have created a culture

         23  in which immigrants who come to this country are

         24  likely to face suspicion and discrimination from our

         25  government.  As a Honduran immigrant recently stated
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          2  in the New York Times, the authorities look at us

          3  like terrorists.

          4                 After September 11th, Americans did

          5  not authorize the deterioration of the First,

          6  Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and 14th Amendments.

          7  Today, our nation has reached a critical turning

          8  point, where we live in perpetual fear and continue

          9  to allow the disintegration of our basic rights and

         10  liberties.  Will we stand by as the Administration

         11  formulates a second and more dangerous PATRIOT Act

         12  because, in the President's words, the first bill

         13  didn't go far enough?  Or will we step back from

         14  this atmosphere of fear and work to restore our

         15  basic freedoms and rights?  With the introduction of

         16  the True PATRIOT Act, I say we take back our

         17  Constitution.

         18                 The bill repeals sections of the

         19  PATRIOT Act that authorize warrantless sneak and

         20  peek searches, warrantless library, medical and

         21  financial record searches, and the detention and

         22  deportation of non- citizens without meaningful

         23  judicial review.  It also restores the fundamental

         24  right of attorney client privileges and restores

         25  transparency in the Department of Justice and the
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          2  Department of Homeland Security by revoking FOIA,

          3  the Freedom of Information Act, secrecy orders,

          4  along with other important provisions.

          5                 At a time when over 200 years of

          6  Americans' faith in civil liberties is endangered by

          7  two years of fear, I believe that your efforts today

          8  in New York can help move Congress to pass

          9  protections for all Americans.  Together we can

         10  begin the process of paring back the threat to

         11  patriotic descent, the threat to open government,

         12  the threat to equality and the threat to liberty

         13  that has permeated the fabric of our nation over the

         14  past two years.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.

         16  Take this time to read another piece of testimony

         17  submitted through the Governmental Operations

         18  Committee of the New York City Council regarding

         19  Resolution 909 by Bob Barr (phonetic), the 21st

         20  Century Liberties Chair for Freedom and Privacy at

         21  the American Conservative Union, dated October 20,

         22  2003.

         23                 Thank you for offering me the

         24  opportunity and the honor of submitting comments on

         25  this important step in the fight to retain our
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          2  freedoms in America, even as we ensure our safety

          3  from terrorism.

          4                 My name is Bob Barr.  I have served

          5  previously as a United States representative from

          6  Georgia until January of this year.  Previously, I

          7  served as a presidentially appointed United States

          8  Attorney for the Northern District of Georgia, as an

          9  official with the United States Central Intelligence

         10  Agency, and as an attorney in private practice.

         11  Currently, I am again a practicing attorney.  I also

         12  occupy the 21st Century Liberties Chair for Privacy

         13  and Freedom at the Americans Conservative Union and

         14  serve as a consultant on privacy matters for the

         15  ACLU.

         16                 I submit this statement based on that

         17  background, and as a citizen deeply concerned about

         18  the erosions of basic constitutional liberties,

         19  since the tragic and deplorable attacks here and in

         20  Washington, DC on September 11, 2001.  I speak on

         21  behalf of the American Conservative Union.  The

         22  nation's oldest conservative lobbying organization,

         23  dedicated to promoting the goals and principles of

         24  conservatism through one multi- issue umbrella

         25  institution.
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          2                 I fully support Resolution 909, which

          3  would affirm New York City's legacy as America's

          4  gateway to freedom and it urges adoption by the City

          5  Council.  It calls for modest fixes to post- 9/11

          6  security measures, including the USA PATRIOT Act,

          7  are measured, are well thought out, and certainly in

          8  keeping with principles of federalism,

          9  representative democracy, and local control of

         10  government.  All of which are at the core of our

         11  country's greatness.

         12                 Resolution 909 takes an appropriate

         13  stand against the gratuitous and counterproductive

         14  security measures that have become official policy

         15  in the two years since 9/11.  Some of these, such as

         16  the controversial Computer Assisted Passenger Pre

         17  screening System, CAPPS II, offend conservative

         18  values by blindly intruding into the private records

         19  of law abiding Americans, doing nothing more than

         20  exercising their right to travel in the vain hope of

         21  divining terrorist intent.

         22                 Others, including certain provisions

         23  in the PATRIOT Act, implicate privacy, but also

         24  imperil America's cherished right to engage in

         25  peaceful debate about the issues of the day.  The
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          2  PATRIOT Act, especially is illustrative of the slap

          3  dash rush to ill-conceived security measures.  While

          4  some of the law's provisions are non- controversial

          5  for instance, it provides added funding for Arabic

          6  and far sea (phonetic) translators.  It also

          7  contains several provisions that clearly go too far,

          8  too fast in eroding our basic constitutional

          9  freedoms in return for a little more than illusory

         10  security.

         11                 As Resolution 909 points out, the

         12  PATRIOT Act and related post- 9/11 security

         13  measures, in many cases, take the unnecessary step

         14  of curtailing judicial oversight in criminal and

         15  intelligence investigations.  This is a slippery

         16  slope that was clearly anticipated, specifically

         17  addressed, and sought to be avoided by drafters of

         18  our Constitution.

         19                 Section 213 of the PATRIOT Act, for

         20  example, authorizes so- called "sneak and peek"

         21  searches and seizures, which allow an indeterminate

         22  delay in notifying the subject that a search has

         23  occurred and evidence seized.  This represents a

         24  fundamental change in Federal criminal law,

         25  generally by normalizing the notice less search and
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          2  seizure in Federal criminal law, rather than

          3  allowing such warrants to be issued only in

          4  emergency situations, at the discretion of

          5  individual judges.

          6                 Based on articulated exigent

          7  circumstances, that is, the pre- 9/11 status, it

          8  threatens to make such extraordinary power ordinary.

          9    From a conservative perspective, sneak and peek

         10  searches are of great concern given their potential

         11  misuse against certain activists, most notably,

         12  anti- abortion groups, which have already been faced

         13  with heavy- hand prosecution under the RICOH

         14  Statute.  The same broad power could be just as

         15  easily targeted at other groups, such as war or

         16  peace protestors.  Who knows how the sneak and peek

         17  searches could be used against the right, if another

         18  less sympathetic Administration was to take power.

         19                 Keep in mind, as with many provisions

         20  in the PATRIOT Act, these expansive Federal powers

         21  are not limited to cases involving terrorism.  But,

         22  instead, apply generally to all potential violations

         23  of Federal criminal law.

         24                 Section 215 of the 2001 law takes a

         25  similarly overbroad approach to terrorism
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          2  investigations.  Under it, FBI agents have the

          3  authority to demand, among other things, business

          4  information, reading histories, Internet searching

          5  data, medical records and even firearm purchase

          6  receipts under a "rubber stamp" form of judicial

          7  review, and without probable cause to believe any

          8  wrongdoing is underway.

          9                 Frighteningly, the Attorney General

         10  himself admitted that 215, Section 215 could be used

         11  to obtain even genetic information.  While much has

         12  appropriately been written about this provision's

         13  chilling effect on library users, a result that is

         14  very, that is real, regardless of how many times the

         15  government says it has or hasn't employed the power,

         16  its reach extends far beyond just libraries.

         17                 Other provisions of the PATRIOT Act

         18  similarly overreach, and indeed, to be brought back

         19  in line with the Bill of Rights, and need to be

         20  brought back in line with the Bill of Rights.

         21  Wisely, however, Resolution 909 doesn't focus just

         22  on the PATRIOT Act, it also calls into question

         23  other post- 9/11 liberties violations.

         24                 Importantly, Reso. 909 calls for the

         25  City of New York to refrain from implementing any
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          2  municipal program similar to a now defunct Federal

          3  initiative called Operation TIPS, Terrorism

          4  Information Prevention System.  Around this time

          5  last year, the controversy over TIPS reached the

          6  boiling point when Attorney General was forced to

          7  pull the plug on the fledging citizen spy

          8  initiative.  The program, as envisioned, would have

          9  actively recruited Americans whose jobs grant them

         10  easy access to our homes, e.g., postal workers,

         11  utility technicians, delivery persons, to report to

         12  a centralized hotline anything that, in their mind's

         13  eye, might constitute a suspicious activity.

         14                 Notably, my conservative colleagues

         15  in the House led the fights against TIPS in

         16  Congress.  In an unusual display of bipartisanship,

         17  symptomatic of the core rights threatened by

         18  measures such as Operation TIPS, our former House

         19  Majority Leader representative, Richard Armian

         20  (phonetic) a republican of Texas, and current House

         21  Minority Leader Representative Nancy Pelosi,

         22  Democrat of California, successfully included in a

         23  provision in the bill establishing the Homeland

         24  Security Department that effectively killed TIPS.

         25                 Regrettably, programs expanding
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          2  Federal powers, programs such as TIPS, or the

          3  similarly discredited Total Information Awareness

          4  Program, rarely die a final death.  Even if Congress

          5  directs their demise, some are resurrected under

          6  other names in other departments.  At other times,

          7  the government attempts to circumvent the intent of

          8  Congress, or of Federal laws, such as the Privacy

          9  Act, by providing Federal taxpayer funds to States

         10  or local governments to establish or implement the

         11  programs.

         12                 The MATRIX program, Multistate Anti-

         13  Terrorism Information Exchange, developing Florida

         14  with Federal dollars by a profit company to do what

         15  Congress has already indicated it did not want done

         16  directly through TIA, is an example of this

         17  approach.  This is why the action contemplated by

         18  Reso. 909 is so very timely and important.

         19                 Reso. 909 currently warns against

         20  resurrecting the program on a local level.  The

         21  drafters of 909 also deserve applause for including

         22  a section warning against future PATRIOT style

         23  legislation, including the infamous Domestic

         24  Security Enhancement Act of 2003, also known as the

         25  Son of PATRIOT Act or PATRIOT Act II, which hasn't
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          2  been formally introduced in Congress, but which is

          3  being informally floated on the hill and is being

          4  introduced piecemeal in other seemingly innocuous or

          5  non-germane legislation.

          6                 Not least of Son of PATRIOT's

          7  transgressions is their proposed section that would

          8  permit the Federal Government to strip Americans of

          9  their citizenship, whether natural born or

         10  naturalized, if they are convicted of "material

         11  support for terrorism."  A change that could apply

         12  to actions that citizens of common sense would be

         13  hard pressed to see as terrorism.  The framers of

         14  our Constitution deliberately omitted mention of

         15  such power because they realized the authority to

         16  strip our citizenship is the ability to tailor the

         17  electorate to one's advantage, a truly terrifying

         18  state of affairs.

         19                 In sum, Reso. 909 is a key symbol of

         20  Americans' unwillingness to allow understandable

         21  concern of terrorism to mutate into the irrational

         22  crippling of our most cherished rights and freedoms.

         23    Conservative or liberal, republican or democrat,

         24  all Americans should stand behind the Constitution,

         25  for it is the one thing, when all is said and done,
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          2  that will keep us a free people and a signal light

          3  of true liberty for the world.  Thank you again for

          4  allowing me this opportunity to express these views

          5  in support of Reso. 909.  Respectfully, Bob Barr.

          6                 Any questions?  Council Member

          7  Vallone.  Thank you very much.  Yes.

          8                 MR. JURESKY:  Council Member Perkins,

          9  I'd just like to mention that the Congressman's,

         10  Congressman Dennis Kucinich's offices are open to

         11  any of the Members of your Committee that would like

         12  to ask provocative questions, as I'm sure some of

         13  you might have, and important questions, as well, to

         14  further this effort.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         16  much.  We appreciate the offer and we appreciate the

         17  good work that all of you are doing.

         18                 MR. JURESKY:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Next we'll have

         20  Omar Mohammedi and Monica Tarazi, and Mo Razvy

         21  (phonetic).

         22                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good afternoon.  Could

         23  you each raise your right hand.  Do you solemnly

         24  swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to

         25  give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  the truth?

          3                 MR. RAZVY:  Yes.

          4                 (Witnesses on panel sworn)

          5                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you

          6  each, for the record, before you speak, state your

          7  name and the organization you're affiliated with.

          8  If we could start on the right over here.  Hit the

          9  button on it, make sure the light is off.

         10                 MS. ABDUL- MUNIM:  Firdos Adbul-

         11  Munim from the Council on American Islamic

         12  Relations.  I'm speaking on behalf of Omar

         13  Mohammedi.

         14                 I am here today on behalf of the

         15  Council on American Islamic Relations and the

         16  Greater Muslim Community of New York, to express our

         17  support for City Council Resolution 909. I am deeply

         18  concerned about the mounting civil rights violations

         19  against Muslims, Arabs and South Asians, and all

         20  individuals perceived to be of Middle Eastern

         21  decent.  The violations that are being committed by

         22  our law enforcement agencies makes this community

         23  feel helpless, fearful and confused about their

         24  future in America.

         25                 The laws and their application are
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          2  targeting our community based on their national

          3  origin, religion and race. Outrageous acts have been

          4  committed as a result of the enactment of the US

          5  (sic) PATRIOT Act.  This Act has made the members of

          6  my community feel as if they are not protected by

          7  basic civil and human rights.  I would also like to

          8  mention that there are 800,000 Muslims in New York.

          9  Eight million Muslims in the U.S. And four million

         10  Arabs in the U.S.

         11                 Just as African Americans and Latinos

         12  were often unfairly targeted during the war on

         13  drugs, Arabs, South Asians and Muslim Americans have

         14  become victims of the new war on terrorism.  The

         15  September 11th tragedy has allowed law enforcement

         16  agencies complete power to profile Muslims, Arabs

         17  and South Asians without accountability.

         18                 The passage of the US PATRIOT Act has

         19  made it easier for the government to secretly

         20  wiretap and search homes, spy on citizens and

         21  broaden the definition of a terrorist.  The

         22  application of the US PATRIOT Act demonstrated

         23  results much more devastating than its principles.

         24  The Arab, South Asian and Muslim communities have

         25  been specifically targeted and exposed to harsh
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          2  treatments, humiliating profiling, indefinite

          3  detentions and discrimination.

          4                 In the early stage of the US PATRIOT

          5  Act application, thousands of Arab and Muslim

          6  immigrants were detained for months without access

          7  to an attorney or contact with their families.  Many

          8  were charged with only minor immigration violations.

          9    Others faced hearings in secret and were later

         10  deported to their countries of origin.  These

         11  detainees were considered suspected terrorists based

         12  on their national origin, religion or race.  The

         13  government cannot offer an argument of mere

         14  suspicion, nor probable cause, to detain these

         15  individuals. Resolution 909 ensures that those who

         16  have been detained have the right to counsel, the

         17  right to be charged with a crime and the right to

         18  have a public trial.

         19                 The other form of profiling that

         20  concerns Arab and Muslim Americans is the targeting

         21  of Middle Eastern people at airports.  Driving while

         22  black is a term that is coined by civil rights

         23  advocates to indicate racial profiling of African

         24  Americans.  But, in recent years, flying while Arab

         25  or Muslim has entered the vocabulary.  Examples of
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          2  profiling while flying are numerous.  And, some

          3  people face the same experience every time they fly

          4  because their name is similar to the names on the No

          5  Fly List.

          6                 The No Fly List is compiled by the

          7  Department of Transportation and used by the FAA to

          8  identify suspected terrorists.  The irony is that

          9  some of the terrorists are already in detention, but

         10  people of the similar, with similar names are

         11  prevented from flying.  This usually happens to

         12  people with common Muslim names.  Just imagine if

         13  there was a terrorist named John Smith.  The

         14  profiling of Muslims and Arabs while flying does not

         15  protect this country, but cause more harm and

         16  humiliation to innocent and hard- working Americans.

         17                 Acting as agents for the government,

         18  financial institutions have been targeting their

         19  Muslim and Arab customers. These financial

         20  institutions have faced steep fines if they do

         21  business with anyone on the list of suspected

         22  terrorists offered by the U.S. Treasury's Office of

         23  Foreign Asset Control, known as OFAC.  In addition,

         24  the US PATRIOT Act requires that financial

         25  institutions maintain programs to check every new
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          2  customer against OFAC's on- line database.  The OFAC

          3  database lets hundreds of common Arab and Hispanic

          4  names, often with few other identifying facts about

          5  the suspects.

          6                 For instance, Mohammed Ali's name has

          7  been, has become a target and whoever is named as

          8  such is subject to terrorist investigation.  One of

          9  our clients happens to have that name.  He is a New

         10  York born Muslim, went to his local Western Union in

         11  Brooklyn to wire $80.00 for schools books to a

         12  friend in Connecticut.  Mr. Ali's order had been

         13  blocked because his name had turned up on a

         14  government list of known terrorists. Mohammed Ali is

         15  a common name among Muslims, just as the boxer

         16  legend, Mohammed Ali.

         17                 With the OFAC database in the section

         18  of the US PATRIOT Act combine people of Muslim and

         19  Arab names have their accounts closed without

         20  explanations, others were requested to offer very

         21  intrusive information, though they had been

         22  customers for ten to 20 years.  Others were refused

         23  the opportunity to open a bank account.  It is clear

         24  that the PATRIOT Act has affected every aspect of

         25  lives of Muslims, Arabs and South Asians in the
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          2  United States.

          3                 The latest governmental episode of

          4  Muslim and Arab profiling occurred under the

          5  National Security Entry Exit Registration System, or

          6  NSEERS, commonly known as Special Registration.

          7  Under the NSEERS program, men and boys over 16 years

          8  of age, from 25 countries had to report to the INS,

          9  where they were photographed, fingerprinted,

         10  interviewed under oath. Failure to comply with the

         11  requirements of the program is a deportable offense.

         12    Ironically, many of the immigrants who complied

         13  with the program have been detained, deported, and

         14  others are waiting deportation due to immigration

         15  technicalities resulting from INS bureaucracy, such

         16  as backlogs, backlogs in issuing green cards.

         17                 In addition, the manner in which the

         18  call- in registration program was implemented caused

         19  humiliation and degradation for the targeted

         20  nationals of Arab and Muslim countries.  During the

         21  call- in registration, these people were subjected

         22  to verbal abuse and were treated as if they were

         23  criminals.  During the Special Registration process,

         24  the registrants were denied attorney's

         25  representation, which interferes with the Sixth
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          2  Amendment right to counsel, yet they were

          3  interrogated and handcuffed, as if they had just

          4  committed a crime.  Now that the call- in

          5  registration process has ended with a clear

          6  indication that this program was based on national

          7  origin, religion, and race, it is questionable

          8  whether the data and the measures taken under this

          9  call- in registration program will serve to combat

         10  terrorism.

         11                 The profiling of Muslims and Arabs is

         12  occurring in all places and sectors, to the point

         13  that members of the community are not safe, even in

         14  their own homes or jobs. According to the Guilt by

         15  Association report of 2003, issued by the Council on

         16  American Islamic Relations, Federal agents raided a

         17  number of Muslim homes and offices in Virginia and

         18  Georgia. People targeted in these raids are

         19  respected community leaders. Those whose homes were

         20  targeted said they were handcuffed for hours and

         21  women were not allowed to wear their head scarfs.

         22  No criminal charges were filed and no evidence has

         23  been produced to explain the government's action.

         24                 Law enforcement agencies are

         25  presently gathering names of people who attend
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          2  mosques for prayer and spying on their political and

          3  religious activities.  Resolution 909 will uphold

          4  New Yorkers's First Amendment rights to engage in

          5  lawful religious and political activity and calls on

          6  law enforcement agencies to fully respect these

          7  rights.  I urge the City Council to support

          8  Resolution 909 to ensure that our civil liberties

          9  are preserved.  Thank you.

         10                 MS. TARAZI:  Good afternoon, my name

         11  is Monica Tarazi.  I'm with the American- Arab Anti-

         12  Discrimination Committee.  It's my pleasure to

         13  testify here this morning before you, and join the

         14  thousands of New Yorkers across the City calling on

         15  the New York City Council to reaffirm its long

         16  standing commitment to our Constitution and support

         17  Resolution 909.

         18                 Although I should add that I would

         19  have been happier to testify this morning in the

         20  presence of Council Member Vallone, whose, I, deeply

         21  offensive questions, I mean, the implications that

         22  he made regarding the Arab American community, I

         23  think need to, should have been responded to by

         24  members of the Arab American community.  I find it

         25  ironic that by the time representatives of the Arab
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          2  American community were able, are able to come up

          3  and express ourselves, I mean, our support for this

          4  Resolution, all the Council Members, except you,

          5  Council Member Perkins, have left the room.

          6                 ADC, as our name suggests, the

          7  American- Arab Anti Discrimination Committee, is an

          8  Arab American civil rights organization committed to

          9  defending the rights of people of Arab descent in

         10  the United States and promoting their rich cultural

         11  heritage.  ADC was found in 1980 by former U.S.

         12  Senator James Abourezk in response to stereotyping,

         13  defamation and discrimination directed against

         14  Americans of Arab origin.  Since then, ADC has grown

         15  into the largest grassroots Arab American civil

         16  rights organization in the United States.  A non-

         17  partisan, non- sectarian organization, we have over

         18  75 chapters nationwide, and in addition to our

         19  headquarters in Washington, DC, we have offices in

         20  New York, Michigan and California.

         21                 I'm proud to be here this morning to

         22  support this important sensible legislation, because

         23  I firmly believe that as residents of the most

         24  ethnically diverse cities, one of the most

         25  ethnically diverse cities in the country, we owe it
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          2  to ourselves to state publicly and for the record

          3  that as a City, we are united in opposing the

          4  draconian restrictions on our freedoms contained in

          5  the USA PATRIOT Act and related executive orders,

          6  programs and regulations.  And, that as a City, we

          7  reject the indefinite detentions, secret hearings,

          8  court stripping, racial profiling, the surveillance

          9  of First Amendment- protected activity and this

         10  Administration's attempts to stifle free speech and

         11  suppress dissent, and that as a City, we firmly

         12  believe that it is both our right and responsibility

         13  to defend our Bill of Rights.  We need this

         14  Resolution now more than ever.

         15                 Over the past two years, while

         16  publicly condemning discriminatory behavior by

         17  private citizens and non- governmental actors, the

         18  Bush Administration has simultaneously abrogated for

         19  itself the right to enact discriminatory policies

         20  and selectively apply existing laws and regulations.

         21                 Successive policies primarily

         22  targeting Arab Americans and, Arab Americans and

         23  Arab immigrants, such as the Department of Justice's

         24  Voluntary Interviews program, Special Registration,

         25  the Absconder Apprehension Initiative and racial
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          2  profiling by law enforcement and at airports, have

          3  sent waves of fear throughout the Arab American

          4  community, contributing to an ever- deepening sense

          5  of isolation, vulnerability and alienation.

          6                 Worse, these policies sent a

          7  dangerous message to the general public that the

          8  Administration views Arabs and Muslims as a special

          9  category of inherently suspicious immigrants and

         10  citizens.  A message that was heard loud and clear,

         11  apparently, by one of the Council Members here this

         12  morning, whose questions I felt were deeply

         13  offensive, by implication.

         14                 When combined by the understandable,

         15  but all too often misplaced, anger over September

         16  11th, the hostile commentary that has been all too

         17  prevalent in the media and the ignorance in the

         18  general public about the culture, history and

         19  religions of the Arab world, this has had a

         20  devastating effect. The resulting atmosphere of

         21  suspicion and fear was one in which the hate crimes,

         22  harassment, employment discrimination and bias in

         23  schools reported to ADC were practically inevitable.

         24                 Yet, even as Arab Americans have

         25  struggled to respond to this discrimination, our
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          2  efforts have been hindered by the tremendous fear

          3  within our community that any activism to defend our

          4  rights will result in an individual being singled

          5  out for government scrutiny, searches and

          6  surveillance, and that even by joining an

          7  organization like ADC, will result in a person's

          8  name suddenly appearing on some government list.

          9                 This fear is hardly surprising.  One

         10  Arab American activist I know was visited at her

         11  home by the FBI, after she received, after the FBI

         12  received an anonymous tip that she had been making

         13   "anti- American statements."  Her best guess was

         14  that someone overheard her demanding that the

         15  government release the names of the post- September

         16  11th indefinite detainees.

         17                 And it's not just activists who have

         18  been singled out for this kind of scrutiny.  One

         19  Arab American man called my office to report that

         20  officers from the NYPD Intelligence Unit visited his

         21  work place based on an anonymous tip that there were

         22  Arabic- speaking men there.  Another called when

         23  police officers appeared at his restaurant after he

         24  had had a haircut. Apparently, someone had reported

         25  that he had changed his appearance.  It's not hard
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          2  to imagine the chilling effect this has on free

          3  speech, or the distressing messages these tips send

          4  to our community.

          5                 Like all New Yorkers, Arab Americans

          6  long to feel safe and secure.  But, how can we when

          7  the Federal Government is quite proudly and

          8  unapologetically using race, ethnicity and national

          9  origin as proxies for suspicion of criminality?

         10                 How can we feel safe when the

         11  Attorney General apparently has difficulty

         12  distinguishing between terrorists and immigrants,

         13  and the Director of the FBI views the number of

         14  Muslims in a given area as an indicator of that

         15  district's vulnerability to terrorism?

         16                 How can we feel safe when over 3,000

         17  people, most of them Arab, Muslim or South Asian,

         18  have been detained since September 11th on the basis

         19  of minor immigration offenses and families are being

         20  destroyed on a daily basis as fathers and brothers

         21  are deported from the country they chose to call

         22  home?

         23                 How can we feel safe when members of

         24  our community are afraid to call the police because

         25  anecdotal evidence strongly suggests that NYPD
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          2  officers have either been enforcing immigration law,

          3  or at least, accompanying the FBI and Federal

          4  Immigration Officials in their sweeps of Arab

          5  American and South Asian neighborhoods?

          6                 In fact, how can any of us feel safe

          7  if we have to worry that our government, the

          8  government agents are carrying, are creating

          9  dossiers on our participation at political rallies,

         10  recording our speech, scrutinizing our e- mail and

         11  monitoring the books we read?  How can any of us

         12  feel safe when the very system of government that we

         13  hold dear is being undermined by an Administration

         14  that insists on acting behind closed doors and has

         15  shown flagrant disregard for the checks and balances

         16  that make our democracy work?

         17                 The simple answer is we can't, which

         18  is why we need to join the more than 198 cities and

         19  three States that have already passed resolutions to

         20  uphold our Constitution and protect our Bill of

         21  Rights.

         22                 Resolution 909 is a well- crafted,

         23  rational response to the curtailment of our freedoms

         24  and the attacks on immigrants that I, and others,

         25  have touched on this morning. Passing it in the New
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          2  York City Council will send a powerful message to

          3  the most vulnerable members of our community, this

          4  Committee is committed to keeping all of us safe and

          5  all of us free.

          6                 But it will do more than that.

          7  Passing Resolution 909 will also send a forceful

          8  message to Washington that New Yorkers are proud of

          9  the Constitution of this country and the rights that

         10  it protects.  And, that faced with the prospect of

         11  endless war and new legislation threatening to

         12  curtail our freedoms and liberties even further, we

         13  will go on the record as a City to defend our right

         14  to dissent, to speak out, to march, to rally and to

         15  organize until our voices are heard.  Thank you.

         16                 MR. RAZVY:  Good afternoon, I

         17  represent, my name is Mohammed Razvy (phonetic), I'm

         18  representing Council of Pakistan organization.  I'm

         19  here to support the Resolution 909. My community was

         20  one of the hardest hit after this civil rights were

         21  violated.  In my community, the FBI, the raids from

         22  the INS, oh, the INS raids and the FBI raids did

         23  occur.  In my community, we have lost about 20,000

         24  people.  We've had about 150,000 people who were in

         25  Brooklyn, of those 20,000 have left, and they
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          2  basically have left because so many individuals were

          3  detained, were harassed, or arrested, some of them,

          4  just on minor immigrant charges.

          5                 This fear that caused this immigrant

          6  community in my neighborhood, it devastated the

          7  economy in that neighborhood. We've lost so much

          8  business, we've lost so many individuals who are

          9  migrating into Canada and into other countries, or

         10  back to their country, seeking asylum from the

         11  United States, that they are persecuted here.  It

         12  really is so upsetting that these individuals who

         13  left their countries to seek the freedom here in the

         14  United States, have to leave United States again to

         15  seek freedom somewhere else.

         16                 The Constitution does protect, or did

         17  protect, you know, these individuals, but now, at

         18  the moment, it seems like that there's no protection

         19  for these individuals.  As it goes further, I mean,

         20  other individuals who are citizens, they're also

         21  being detained.  I have a case Selene Joffer

         22  (phonetic), who is a citizen of the United States,

         23  was detained for 38 days, just on the assumption

         24  that he's a terrorist link to Osama Bin Laden.  At

         25  the end, when they went to grand jury, they said, oh
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          2  you didn't pay your rental car payment, and this

          3  went to grand jury.  It took the grand jury seven

          4  minutes or eight minutes to decide that he was not

          5  guilty.  These are the things that are happening to

          6  individuals.

          7                 I cannot explain to you where, when a

          8  child, when a child is in front of the INS officer,

          9  the FBI agent, when his father is just arrested, and

         10  you know, the child looks up to his father, is this

         11  the land of the free that you told us you were going

         12  to bring us to?  This is just like in the third

         13  world countries, where they have no civil rights.

         14                 At the moment, what's happening in

         15  our nation is the civil rights are violated so badly

         16  that it seems like we're in a third world country.

         17  People should not be detained unless there is a

         18  reason, unless there are, there's a warrant, and we

         19  really want this Resolution 909.  I'm so sorry that

         20  Michael Nelson, I can't believe he left.  He

         21  represents by community.  I really wanted him to

         22  hear this, all this individuals, that all these

         23  families that were devastated of this.

         24                 I mean, I have people who have half

         25  families here, half in Canada, and they are granted
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          2  these asylums from the United States.  That's the

          3  message that's going into the third world countries,

          4  there's no more freedom in the United States. We

          5  really have to uphold the civil rights and we have

          6  to work on this Resolution.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          8  much.  I appreciate your testimony.  We're going to

          9  move straight ahead to our next panel.  Barbara

         10  Barr, New York City League of Women Voters, Nancy

         11  Young, New York City Bill of Rights.  Roberta

         12  Cooper, the Deputy Director of People for the

         13  American Way submitted testimony supporting City

         14  Council Resolution 909, but she had to leave and

         15  wanted to make sure that she was, it was noted that

         16  she was here and submitted some testimony.  Firdos

         17  Abdul- Munim, the Council of American Islamic

         18  Relations.  Cecelia McCall, of course, PSC CUNY.

         19  Good to see you.

         20                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good afternoon.  Could

         21  you each raise your right hand.  Do you solemnly

         22  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give

         23  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         24  truth?

         25                 (Witnesses on panel sworn)
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          2                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you

          3  each, before reading your testimony, state your name

          4  and any organization you represent.  The light

          5  should be off.  Thank you.

          6                 MS. BARR:  I've come here this

          7  afternoon to speak in support of Resolution 909A,

          8  calling for our Federal, State and local officials

          9  to affirm and adhere to the civil rights and civil

         10  liberties that are the foundation of our country.

         11                 The League of Women Voters has a long

         12  history of advocating the protection of our most

         13  basic freedoms, even in times of war.  In 1942,

         14  during World War II, the League's position was to

         15  preserve the greatest degree of civil liberty

         16  consistent with national safety and though the witch

         17  hunts of the 1950's and pre- occupation with loyalty

         18  oaths, a League study culminated in a policy

         19  position that emphasized protection of individual

         20  liberties against major threats to constitutional

         21  rights.

         22                 We share the concern of the sponsors

         23  of this Resolution that provisions of the PATRIOTS

         24  (sic) Act and its proposed successor, the Domestic

         25  Security Enhancement Act, also known as PATRIOT Act
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          2  II, are threatening our constitutional rights and

          3  may endanger many key rights of individuals.  For

          4  example, the First Amendment rights of freedom of

          5  speech and association are jeopardized by the overly

          6  broad definition of terrorism in both Acts, which

          7  may result in government action against individuals

          8  and organizations doing nothing more than

          9  questioning the policies of our natural leaders.

         10                 The Fourth Amendment right to freedom

         11  from unreasonable search and seizure is being

         12  undermined by authorizing government officials to

         13  obtain data, such as financial records, library and

         14  bookseller records of individuals, without a warrant

         15  or involvement by the courts.

         16                 The Fifth Amendment right to due

         17  process and freedom from being held without charge

         18  is being abrogated by the Acts' provision for

         19  indefinite detention of individuals, including

         20  American citizens, without disclosure of names or

         21  filing of charges.

         22                 The Sixth Amendment right to legal

         23  representation and to a speedy and public trial is

         24  being undermined by the indefinite incarceration of

         25  citizens who are designated as enemy combatants
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          2  without access to counsel.

          3                 Furthermore, we are concerned that

          4  PATRIOT Acts I and II are diminishing our system of

          5  checks and balances.  Our democracy is based on

          6  accountability and responsibility to the public.

          7  Congress should know what the executive is doing and

          8  the judiciary should be free to review the

          9  activities of law enforcement agencies.  Secrecy and

         10  consolidation of power in one branch of government

         11  is inconsistent with our Constitution.

         12                 When the USA PATRIOT Act passed two

         13  years ago, some of its most controversial provisions

         14  were scheduled to sunset in five years.  The purpose

         15  of the sunset provisions was to give Congress and

         16  the public time to determine the impact of the Act

         17  on individual rights.

         18                 Now, there are efforts in Congress to

         19  make many of the law enforcement provisions

         20  permanent before the trial period has ended.  Under

         21  these circumstances, it is important that the

         22  public, on their own, and through their locally

         23  represented, elected representatives, let Congress

         24  know that we oppose any efforts to eliminate the

         25  sunset provisions in the USA PATRIOT Act.  In these
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          2  perilous times, it is imperative that State and

          3  local governments can work in concert with the

          4  Federal Government in the critical balancing of

          5  security concerns and individual liberties.

          6                 The New York City League of Women

          7  Voters believes that constitutionally guaranteed

          8  individual rights should not be weakened or

          9  abridged.  Our conviction is as strong today as it

         10  was in 1942.  In this spirit, we appreciate and

         11  support this Council Resolution informing our

         12  leaders in Washington of the concerns of the duly

         13  elected representatives of eight million New Yorkers

         14  that provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act and the

         15  proposed DSEA are in conflict with the Constitution

         16  of the United States. Thank you for the opportunity

         17  to testify.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.  Let

         19  me just announce the names of the next panel, so

         20  that people can note. George Rosquist, the Staten

         21  Island Freedom Now, following this panel, Susan

         22  Micken, West Side Peace, and Lillian Rydell, West

         23  Side Peace Action.  Those will be the next panel.

         24                 MS. YOUNG:  Good afternoon.  My name

         25  is Nancy E. Young, and I'm honored to be here as a
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          2  volunteer with the New York City Bill of Rights

          3  Defense Campaign.  Before we came together as

          4  concerned Americans, we lived as typical New

          5  Yorkers. We are employees in the corporate

          6  environment, teachers in public and private schools,

          7  workers in the non- profit sector, and individuals

          8  enjoying life as retirees.  We are African American,

          9  Arab American, Asian American, Latino and Caucasian.

         10  We are immigrants, children of immigrants, and those

         11  who reach back for immigrant or Native American

         12  roots.  We are volunteers in churches, synagogues,

         13  mosque, in community groups, community gardens,

         14  parks and the City's schools.  I am here as one of

         15  many voices, to express alarm that our American

         16  values are in danger.

         17                 As a child born in the 60's, I've

         18  sensed in my lifetime that things have gotten

         19  better, not quickly, not easily, not always moving

         20  in a linear manner, but the lives of Americans have

         21  progressed towards our traditional values, wrapped

         22  in modern dreams such as that espoused by Dr. Martin

         23  Luther King, Junior. These values include freedom,

         24  equality, privacy, independence, and individualism.

         25  Some members of the society take them for granted.
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          2  They are still not fully in the reach of others, but

          3  they are a shared vision about which makes

          4  democracy.

          5                 American values are in danger,

          6  threatened by government actions primarily at the

          7  Federal level, through the USA PATRIOT Act, but also

          8  at State and local levels.  This dismantling of

          9  values has started to unweave the long- standing

         10  threat of our Bill of Rights.  A document that has

         11  served us well for 212 years, in times of peace, in

         12  times of crisis.  We should not underestimate the

         13  ability of this living document to guide us in times

         14  post- 9/11.

         15                 For some, the damage to the Bill of

         16  Rights to limit and weaken freedom of expression,

         17  equal treatment, privacy, independence,

         18  individualism is still theoretical.  For others, it

         19  is now and real and devastating.  Democracy doesn't

         20  live solely in the White House.  It lives in

         21  Brooklyn, the Bronx, Queens, Staten Island, and

         22  Manhattan.  Judge Andrew Napolitano stated: In a

         23  democracy, personal liberties are rarely diminished

         24  overnight, rather, they are lost gradually by acts

         25  of well- meaning people with good intentions amid

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  public approval.  But, the subtle loss of freedom is

          3  never recognized until the crisis is over and we

          4  look back in horror, and then it is too late.

          5                 We in the New York City Bill of

          6  Rights Defense Campaign do not believe it is too

          7  late yet.  We are inspired that ordinary Americans,

          8  just like us, have worked in 186 cities and three

          9  States to create civil liberties and civil rights

         10  safe zones for over 25 million people.  We are

         11  thousands of individuals, including members of 85

         12  local organizations who have joined together.  We

         13  are committed to defending that which makes this

         14  nation.  We in New York City are uniquely situated

         15  to inspire and lead the rest of the country with the

         16  passage of Resolution 909.

         17                 Resolution 909 does not call for the

         18  repeal of the USA PATRIOT Act.  It does not

         19  dismantle the NYPD or prevent them from doing their

         20  job to uphold the quality of life of New Yorkers.

         21  It does not minimize the importance of national

         22  security.  Rather, it upholds the integrity of

         23  national security in the full sense of the term.

         24                 It does call upon the New York City

         25  Government to affirm and uphold the civil rights and
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          2  civil liberties of its citizens.  It does provide a

          3  measured and reasonable response to address specific

          4  areas of excess and zealousness by government

          5  actions.  It does bring government accountability

          6  and transparency to the citizens of this City.

          7                 The U.S. Supreme Court stated:

          8  Implicit in the term national defense, is the notion

          9  of defending those values and ideals which set this

         10  nation apart.  New Yorkers and the rest of the

         11  country are looking to you, Members of this

         12  governing body to provide the most fundamental

         13  defense this country needs by supporting our Bill of

         14  Rights.  We are holding you accountable to uphold

         15  our civil rights and civil liberties by supporting

         16  Resolution 909.  Thank you.

         17                 MS. MCCALL:  Chair Perkins, hi, I'm

         18  Cecelia McCall from the Professional Staff Congress

         19  of CUNY.  Chair Perkins and Members of the

         20  Government Operations Committee, I want to thank you

         21  for this hearing on Resolution 909 and for your

         22  efforts to have it passed by your colleagues in the

         23  Council.

         24                 The USA PATRIOT Act, enacted by

         25  Congress in the wake of terrible events of September
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          2  11, 2001, could not have been passed so rapidly

          3  unless it had been on the drafting table of this

          4  very conservative Administration in Washington.  The

          5  USA PATRIOT Act is not an idea of whose time has

          6  come, but it is an idea that was long planned.  The

          7  attacks of 9/11 were a pretext for its enactment

          8  into law.

          9                 This is an extremely crucial issue

         10  for colleges and universities, in that it may have a

         11  chilling effect on academic freedom, which is the

         12  foundation for the academic enterprise.  Further,

         13  the government's unrestricted ability to examine

         14  reading lists of library and book store customers is

         15  particularly troubling.  There can be no advancement

         16  of ideas without the ongoing search for knowledge

         17  and truth and the revision and correction of

         18  erroneous concepts.

         19                 To name but one example, the Supreme

         20  Court may not have found for the Brown family in the

         21  landmark 1954 case of Brown v. The Board of

         22  Education, if not for the research of Doctor Kenneth

         23  Clark, Professor at City College and founder of the

         24  Northside Center for Children that formed the basis

         25  for Thurgood Marshall's argument.  Dr. Clark's
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          2  research spawned other such studies and extensive

          3  theories related to the concept of self- esteem.

          4  That is the nature of scholarship, one idea that

          5  grows, changes, is corrected, revised, adopted or

          6  rejected.

          7                 The Professional Staff Congress has

          8  joined with other organizations in higher education

          9  to oppose and call for the repeal of the Act.  Our

         10  affiliate, the American Association of University

         11  Professors has said "Institutions of higher

         12  education are conducted for the common good and not

         13  to further the interest of either the individual

         14  teacher or the institution as a whole.  The common

         15  good depends upon the free search for truth and its

         16  free exposition."

         17                 The New York Library Association

         18  passed an extensive resolution that includes: The

         19  New York Library Association affirms the rights of

         20  librarians everywhere to defend and support patron

         21  privacy and will join the efforts of the American

         22  Library Association and other organizations to

         23  facilitate the free flow of information to defend

         24  patron privacy and to amend or change sections of

         25  the USA PATRIOT Act, the Homeland Security Act and

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  other related legislation that threatens or violates

          3  those rights.

          4                 In June 2003, the PSC passed a

          5  resolution in support of your 909: Resolved that PSC

          6  CUNY oppose the USA PATRIOT Act and call for the New

          7  York City Council to pass Resolution 909, which

          8  calls upon Federal, State and local officials and

          9  upon New York City agencies and institutions to

         10  affirm and uphold civil rights and civil liberties.

         11                 And this month, our Executive Council

         12  adopted an action program through the following

         13  resolution: Resolved that the Executive Council

         14  endorse and support Council on Campus in order to

         15  increase awareness of and opposition to the USA

         16  PATRIOT Act and in support of Resolution 909.

         17                 Our chapters on the CUNY Campuses

         18  will be developing information and action programs

         19  as part of the New York Bill of Rights Defense

         20  Campaign, to which Members of your Committee will be

         21  invited.  We hope you accept the invitations. There

         22  will be a letter writing campaign to your fellow

         23  Council Members, urging passage of 909 and a

         24  petition as well.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very
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          2  much for your testimony and thank you very much for

          3  the support that you are providing to the

          4  Resolution.  And, we look forward to continuing

          5  working with you on protecting the civil rights and

          6  civil liberties of New Yorkers and Americans in

          7  general.

          8                 George Rosquist, the Freedom Now,

          9  Lillian Rydell, Westside Peace Action, Susan Mickin,

         10  Westside Peace Action.  Is there anyone else here

         11  for the purpose of testifying? Otherwise, this is

         12  our last panel.  Thank you very much.  Please.

         13                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good afternoon --

         14                 MR. ROSQUIST:  -- Yes, good afternoon

         15  Mr. Chairman --

         16                 MR. TOLLIN:  -- Do you have testimony

         17  to give the Sergeant at Arms?

         18                 MR. ROSQUIST:  Oh, I'm sorry.

         19                 MR. TOLLIN:  No, no, do you have

         20  testimony?  Oh okay.  Please raise your right hand.

         21  Do you solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you're

         22  about to give is the truth, the whole truth and

         23  nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. ROSQUIST:  Yes I do.

         25                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could you,
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          2  before giving your testimony, state your name and

          3  the organization you're affiliated with.

          4                 MR. ROSQUIST:  My name is George

          5  Rosquist, I'm represent, the group called Freedom

          6  Now, which is based in Staten Island.  I'm also, our

          7  group is also a part of the coalition of the New

          8  York City Bill of Rights Defense Campaign.  Good

          9  afternoon Mr. Chairman and esteem Members of the

         10  Council.

         11                 President Roosevelt told us that

         12  America has nothing to fear but fear itself.  Now,

         13  that statement, although meant in a different

         14  context, still its concept is probably most, one of

         15  the most important things that any American has

         16  spoken.

         17                 The USA PATRIOT Act and other laws

         18  that are, and executive orders that are parallel to

         19  it or enacted in an atmosphere of fear, it was the

         20  342 page PATRIOT Act was barely read by anyone in

         21  Congress because it was there and pushed through

         22  during the anthrax scare.  As a veteran and who

         23  associates with other veterans, particularly those

         24   -- thank you very much, and particularly those who

         25  lost family members and, or in the second World War,
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          2  and also in the Vietnam conflict, where I fought, we

          3  all fought for a principle.  We took an oath when

          4  we, when we went into the service, to preserve and

          5  protect the Constitution of the United States.  That

          6  same oath is also taken by many people in

          7  Washington, much more recently than we gave it, and

          8  they seem to have forgotten it.

          9                 The PATRIOT Act just nullifies our

         10  Constitution and our Bill of Rights, but it not only

         11  nullifies our Constitution and our Bill of Rights,

         12  but is also violates international law, such as the

         13  Universal Declaration of Human Rights.  We are, our

         14  country is beginning to look foolish in the world

         15  because many people are beginning to wonder what

         16  have we've done here?  Are we losing our minds?

         17  Here, we had one of the greatest nations in the

         18  world based on one of the, one of the most beautiful

         19  foundations of principles of fairness and justice

         20  and freedom and liberty, and we're throwing it all

         21  away out of fear.

         22                 We cannot afford to throw away our

         23  liberty out of fear.  We are, what we, we have to

         24  remember that that same kind of fear, right?

         25  Suspended liberties, curtailed courts, detained
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          2  millions, and all out of, and in 1933 Germany, we

          3  can't afford to have that sort of atmosphere here,

          4  happening now.  This is, this is history repeating

          5  itself and its, it can only go in the wrong

          6  direction.

          7                 The idea of democracy is that people,

          8  the people have a right to a say in their government

          9  and they have, it also means that they have a

         10  responsibility to be able to trust their government.

         11    The government, left to its own devices, only

         12  breeds the unbridled power that is abused.

         13  Governments that operate in secret are the

         14  antithesis of a democracy, and that's not what our

         15  country was meant to be, and it's not what it should

         16  be.  So, I urge you, please, stick to your oath too,

         17  and please support Resolution 909.  We want our

         18  liberty.  We don't feel that it's necessary to take

         19  our liberties to be secure.  In fact, it's

         20  counterproductive.

         21                 It's costing, it's putting, making

         22  people that might be witnesses want to stay

         23  underground.  They don't want jeopardize themselves

         24  by coming forward when they might have information.

         25  It's also costing, costing the American people
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          2  thousands and, millions of dollars in chasing

          3  rainbows.  I mean, if you're looking for a needle in

          4  a haystack, you don't turn on the fan and blow the

          5  hay in your face.

          6                 The thing is, we have had laws on the

          7  books that have served this country well.  We have,

          8  we've captured underworld figures, we've prosecuted

          9  them, and this, and that's no more than what these

         10  terrorists are, just thugs like organized crime.

         11  They can be captured.  And the point is, even before

         12  9/11, most of the information that was, that would

         13  have led to, that could have prevented this, or at

         14  least, limited the attacks on 9/11, the government

         15  had.  They knew that they were, they knew that, they

         16  were told by foreign agencies that there agencies,

         17  that there were Al Queda agents in this country.

         18                 They told, they were told that they

         19  were going hijack airliners.  They told, they were

         20  told they were going to flight schools.  I mean, how

         21  far do you have to look?  There are only so many

         22  flight schools in this country.  They could have

         23  done this investigation without the PATRIOT Act.

         24  They have the information, they have the means to

         25  find these things.  They don't need the PATRIOT Act.
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          2    They don't need to go into people library books,

          3  and they don't need to spend all that time going

          4  through all that irrelevant information and not

          5  seeing the, you know, not seeing the trees for the

          6  forest.  So, if you could, if you would, I would

          7  appreciate and my members would appreciate that if

          8  you would please support us in this Resolution 909

          9  and please vote for it.  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         11  much for your testimony, and that concludes our

         12  hearing for the moment.  Today, we had an oversight

         13  hearing to assess some of the criticisms and

         14  concerns of an Act that on October 26, 2001, six

         15  weeks after the September 11th terrorist attack,

         16  President Bush signed.  It was the uniting and

         17  strengthening Americans by Providing Appropriate

         18  Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism

         19  Act.  Better known as the PATRIOT Act.  And so, we

         20  are looking to see exactly where they tools went too

         21  far in terms of intercepting and obstructing not

         22  terrorism, but the rights and the liberties of

         23  Americans.  And, this hearing was able to tease out,

         24  very specifically, where the Act went too far.

         25                 We've heard from those who had
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          2  different opinions in terms of whether or not the

          3  Act was appropriate, or whether or not the Act was

          4  good.  We will conclude this hearing, recognizing

          5  that there will be another hearing shortly.  At

          6  which point, we will also vote on this Resolution

          7  and hopefully, from at least the perspective of the

          8  Chair, be a giant step towards bringing this Council

          9  towards affirming the role that government has,

         10  especially on the local level, to protect the civil

         11  rights and the civil liberties of New York City

         12  citizens, as well as to affirm our concern about the

         13  excessiveness of the PATRIOT Act, particularly when

         14  it tramples those civil rights and civil liberties.

         15                 I should also point out that after

         16  this is voted out of this Committee, it will then be

         17  presented to the general body.  We have more than a

         18  majority of the Members of the Council as sponsors

         19  of this Resolution.  In effect, we have a consensus

         20  of the body at this point in time on behalf of the

         21  people of the City of New York that have signed on

         22  to the bill.  So, we're optimistic that the bill

         23  will succeed, or the Resolution will succeed.  And,

         24  so, with that in mind, I want to thank one and all

         25  for their time, for their testimony, for the good
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          2  work that they've been doing in this arena of civil

          3  rights and civil liberties on behalf of the people

          4  of the City of New York and on behalf of the United

          5  States of America.  This meeting is now adjourned.

          6                 (Meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m.)

          7                 (Following written testimony was read

          8  into the record)

          9  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         10  ROBERTA COOPER

         11  PEOPLE FOR THE AMERICAN WAY

         12                 My name is Roberta Cooper.  I am

         13  Deputy Director of the New York Regional Office of

         14  People For the American Way. I am here today on

         15  behalf of our more than 40,000 New York City members

         16  and activists in support of Resolution 909.

         17                 People For the American Way is a

         18  constitutional liberties organization.  We were

         19  founded in 1980 by Norman Lear, Barbara Jordan and

         20  other religious, civic and business leaders who

         21  believed passionately that every American is

         22  entitled to the same protections, civil rights and

         23  civil liberties in our democratic society.  Today,

         24  we affirm their legacy: Our country is resilient and

         25  strong enough to stand up to terrorism and to stand
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          2  up for the Constitution.  The Bill of Rights is not

          3  optional in wartime.

          4                 Within six weeks of the September 11

          5  attacks, while the country was still reeling from

          6  the horrors and devastation of that terrible day,

          7  Congress, rammed through the USA Patriot Act.  Such

          8  swift action was nothing short of extraordinary.  It

          9  was accomplished by short- circuiting the usual

         10  process of hearings, committee debate and

         11  consideration of alternatives.  Nor was there any

         12  effort to determine what breakdowns led to the

         13  attacks in order to fashion legislation that would

         14  help our intelligence and law enforcement agencies

         15  prevent or respond to future attacks.  During the

         16  very truncated debate, People For the American Way

         17  emphasized the following principles:

         18                 Legislation should be carefully

         19  crafted in order to preserve constitutional

         20  liberties and to prevent the creation of overly

         21  broad powers that could lead to abuse;

         22                 Meaningful judicial review and

         23  oversight should not be short- circuited;

         24                 Anti- terrorism laws should be

         25  narrowly tailored to that purpose.
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          2                 The Patriot Act did not adhere to any

          3  of these principles.  Instead, the legislation

          4  granted law enforcement sweeping new powers that go

          5  far beyond the fight against terrorism without

          6  adequately protecting our civil liberties.

          7                 And, in fact, the Patriot Act was not

          8  the Government's only response to September 11.  It

          9  also put into place on its own initiative, without

         10  Congressional oversight, draconian guidelines,

         11  rules, programs and policies that further restrict

         12  civil liberties in the name of fighting terrorism.

         13  The Executive Branch and the Justice Department,

         14  under the direction of Attorney General John

         15  Ashcroft, have claimed broad new powers as troubling

         16  as the Patriot Act that serve mostly to endanger

         17  privacy and chill free speech rights of ordinary,

         18  innocent Americans.  Much of this activity, as

         19  detailed in Resolution 909, has unfolded behind a

         20  veil of secrecy and without traditional safeguards

         21  of accountability, distorting any pretense of

         22  maintaining a critical balance between civil

         23  liberties and national security.

         24                 Civil libertarians from across the

         25  political spectrum have united in speaking out
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          2  against the excesses of these policies and the

          3  processes by which they have been put in place.

          4  Legislative bodies- of states, cities and counties-

          5  across the country have passed resolutions

          6  protesting the government's actions and affirming

          7  the need to maintain an open and tolerant society in

          8  the face of terrible tragedy.  We salute the

          9  sponsors of City Council Resolution 909 for joining

         10  this movement and developing a document that is both

         11  substantive and eloquent.  And because New York was

         12  the target of this terrible act -- with its barbaric

         13  disregard for human life, dignity and civil society

         14   -- it is particularly important that you, our

         15  representatives, affirm the belief of all New

         16  Yorkers in the freedoms and safeguards that have

         17  made our country unique and strong by passing

         18  Resolution 909.

         19                 Benjamin Franklin wrote in 1759,

         20   "They that can give up essential liberty to obtain

         21  a little temporary safety deserve neither liberty or

         22  safety."  We must heed his words today.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)

         24
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